
 
 
 

 

 

 

 
Dr Helen Paterson, Chief Executive 

County Hall, Morpeth, Northumberland, NE61 2EF 
T: 0345 600 6400 

www.northumberland.gov.uk   
    
 

 Your ref:  
Our ref:  
Enquiries to: Lesley Little 
Email: Lesley.Little@northumberland.gov.uk 
Tel direct: 01670 622614 
Date: Wednesday 28 February 2024 

 
 
Dear Sir or Madam, 
 

Your attendance is requested at a meeting of the CASTLE MORPETH LOCAL AREA 
PLANNING COMMITTEE to be held in COUNCIL CHAMBER - COUNTY HALL on MONDAY, 
11 MARCH 2024 at 4.00 PM.  

Yours faithfully 

 
Dr Helen Paterson 
Chief Executive 
 

 

To Castle Morpeth Local Area Planning Committee members as follows:- 

D Bawn, J Beynon (Chair), L Darwin, S Dickinson, R Dodd, L Dunn, J Foster (Vice-Chair 
(Planning)), P Jackson, V Jones, M Murphy, G Sanderson, D Towns (Vice-Chair) and 
R Wearmouth 

 



 
Castle Morpeth Local Area Planning Committee, 11 March 2024 

AGENDA 
 

PART I 
 

It is expected that the matters included in this part of the agenda 
will be dealt with in public. 

 
  

1.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 
 

 

 
2.   MINUTES 

 
The minutes of the meeting of the Castle Morpeth Local Area Committee 
held on Monday 12 February 2024, as circulated, are to be agreed and 
signed by the Chair.  
  
 

(Pages 1 
- 4) 

 
3.   DISCLOSURE OF MEMBERS' INTERESTS 

 
Unless already entered in the Council’s Register of Members’ interests, 
members are required where a matter arises at a meeting;  
  

a. Which directly relates to Disclosable Pecuniary Interest (‘DPI’) as set out 
in Appendix B, Table 1 of the Code of Conduct, to disclose the interest, not 
participate in any discussion or vote and not to remain in room. Where 
members have a DPI or if the matter concerns an executive function and is 
being considered by a Cabinet Member with a DPI they must notify the 
Monitoring Officer and arrange for somebody else to deal with the matter. 

  
b. Which directly relates to the financial interest or well being of a Other 

Registrable Interest as set out in Appendix B, Table 2 of the Code of 
Conduct to disclose the interest and only speak on the matter if members 
of the public are also allowed to speak at the meeting but otherwise must 
not take part in any discussion  or vote on the matter and must not remain 
the room. 

  
c. Which directly relates to their financial interest or well-being  (and is not  

DPI) or the financial well being of a relative or close associate, to declare 
the interest and members may only speak on the matter if members of the 
public are also allowed to speak. Otherwise, the member must not take 
part in discussion or vote on the matter and must leave the room. 

  
d. Which affects the financial well-being of the member, a relative or close 

associate or a body included under the Other Registrable Interests column 
in Table 2, to disclose the interest and apply the test set out at paragraph 
9 of Appendix B before deciding whether they may remain in the meeting. 

  
e. Where Members have or a Cabinet Member has an Other Registerable 

Interest or Non Registerable Interest in a matter being considered in 
exercise of their executive function, they must notify the Monitoring Officer 
and arrange for somebody else to deal with it.  

  
NB Any member needing clarification must 

 



 
Castle Morpeth Local Area Planning Committee, 11 March 2024 

contact monitoringofficer@northumberland.gov.uk.  Members are referred 
to the Code of Conduct which contains the matters above in full. Please 
refer to the guidance on disclosures at the rear of this agenda letter. 
  
  

4.   DETERMINATION OF PLANNING APPLICATIONS 
 
To request the committee to decide the planning applications attached to 
this report using the powers delegated to it.   
  
Please note that printed letters of objection/support are not circulated 
with the agenda but are available on the Council’s website at  
http://www.northumberland.gov.uk/Planning.aspx 
  
  
 

(Pages 5 
- 10) 

 
5.   23/02165/FUL 

Development of 32no. affordable homes with associated 
infrastructure, drainage and open space 
Land South of 15-47 Stakeford Crescent, Stakeford Crescent, 
Stakeford, Northumberland 
  
 

(Pages 
11 - 38) 

 
6.   PLANNING APPEALS 

 
For Members’ information to report the progress of planning appeals.  This 
is a monthly report and relates to appeals throughout all 5 Local Area 
Council Planning Committee areas and covers appeals of Strategic 
Planning Committee.  
 
 

(Pages 
39 - 54) 

 
7.   URGENT BUSINESS 

 
To consider such other business as, in the opinion of the Chair, should, by 
reason of special circumstances, be considered as a matter of urgency.  
 

 

mailto:monitoringofficer@northumberland.gov.uk
http://www.northumberland.gov.uk/Planning.aspx


 

Castle Morpeth Local Area Planning Committee, Monday, 11 March 2024 

IF YOU HAVE AN INTEREST AT THIS MEETING, PLEASE: 
  

● Declare it and give details of its nature before the matter is discussed or as soon as it 
becomes apparent to you. 

● Complete this sheet and pass it to the Democratic Services Officer.  

 
Name:   Date of meeting:  

Meeting:  

Item to which your interest relates: 

 

Nature of Interest i.e. either disclosable pecuniary interest (as defined by Table 1 of Appendix B to 
the Code of Conduct, Other Registerable Interest or Non-Registerable Interest (as defined by 
Appendix B to Code of Conduct) (please give details):  
 

Are you intending to withdraw from the meeting?  
 

Yes - ☐ No - ☐ 
 

 



 

Castle Morpeth Local Area Planning Committee, Monday, 11 March 2024 

Registering Interests 
 
Within 28 days of becoming a member or your re-election or re-appointment to office you must register 
with the Monitoring Officer the interests which fall within the categories set out in Table 1 (Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interests) which are as described in “The Relevant Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary 
Interests) Regulations 2012”. You should also register details of your other personal interests which fall 
within the categories set out in Table 2 (Other Registerable Interests). 
 
“Disclosable Pecuniary Interest” means an interest of yourself, or of your partner if you are aware of 
your partner's interest, within the descriptions set out in Table 1 below. 
 
"Partner" means a spouse or civil partner, or a person with whom you are living as husband or wife, or 
a person with whom you are living as if you are civil partners. 
 
1. You must ensure that your register of interests is kept up-to-date and within 28 days of becoming 

aware of any new interest, or of any change to a registered interest, notify the Monitoring Officer. 

 
2. A ‘sensitive interest’ is as an interest which, if disclosed, could lead to the councillor, or a person 

connected with the councillor, being subject to violence or intimidation. 

 
3. Where you have a ‘sensitive interest’ you must notify the Monitoring Officer with the reasons why 

you believe it is a sensitive interest. If the Monitoring Officer agrees they will withhold the interest 
from the public register. 

 
Non participation in case of disclosable pecuniary interest 
 

4. Where a matter arises at a meeting which directly relates to one of your Disclosable Pecuniary 
Interests as set out in Table 1, you must disclose the interest, not participate in any discussion or 
vote on the matter and must not remain in the room unless you have been granted a dispensation. If 
it is a ‘sensitive interest’, you do not have to disclose the nature of the interest, just that you have an 
interest. 

 
Dispensation may be granted in limited circumstances, to enable you to participate and vote on a 
matter in which you have a disclosable pecuniary interest. 
 

5. Where you have a disclosable pecuniary interest on a matter to be considered or is being 
considered by you as a Cabinet member in exercise of your executive function, you must notify the 
Monitoring Officer of the interest and must not take any steps or further steps in the matter apart 
from arranging for someone else to deal with it. 

 
Disclosure of Other Registerable Interests 
 

6. Where a matter arises at a meeting which directly relates to the financial interest or wellbeing of 
one of your Other Registerable Interests (as set out in Table 2), you must disclose the interest. You 
may speak on the matter only if members of the public are also allowed to speak at the meeting but 
otherwise must not take part in any discussion or vote on the matter and must not remain in the 
room unless you have been granted a dispensation. If it is a ‘sensitive interest’, you do not have to 
disclose the nature of the interest. 

 
Disclosure of Non-Registerable Interests 
 



 
Castle Morpeth Local Area Planning Committee, 11 March 2024 

7. Where a matter arises at a meeting which directly relates to your financial interest or well-being 
(and is not a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest set out in Table 1) or a financial interest or well-being of 
a relative or close associate, you must disclose the interest. You may speak on the matter only if 
members of the public are also allowed to speak at the meeting. Otherwise you must not take part in 
any discussion or vote on the matter and must not remain in the room unless you have been granted 
a dispensation. If it is a ‘sensitive interest’, you do not have to disclose the nature of the interest. 

 
8. Where a matter arises at a meeting which affects – 

 
a. your own financial interest or well-being; 

b. a financial interest or well-being of a relative or close associate; or 

c. a financial interest or wellbeing of a body included under Other Registrable Interests as set 
out in Table 2 you must disclose the interest. In order to determine whether you can remain 
in the meeting after disclosing your interest the following test should be applied 

 
9. Where a matter (referred to in paragraph 8 above) affects the financial interest or well- being: 

 
a. to a greater extent than it affects the financial interests of the majority of inhabitants of the 

ward affected by the decision and; 

b. a reasonable member of the public knowing all the facts would believe that it would affect 
your view of the wider public interest  

You may speak on the matter only if members of the public are also allowed to speak at the 
meeting. Otherwise, you must not take part in any discussion or vote on the matter and 
must not remain in the room unless you have been granted a dispensation.  
 
If it is a ‘sensitive interest’, you do not have to disclose the nature of the interest. 

 
Where you have an Other Registerable Interest or Non-Registerable Interest on a matter to be 
considered or is being considered by you as a Cabinet member in exercise of your executive function, 
you must notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest and must not take any steps or further steps in the 
matter apart from arranging for someone else to deal with it. 



 

Castle Morpeth Local Area Planning Committee, Monday, 11 March 2024 

Table 1: Disclosable Pecuniary Interests 
 
This table sets out the explanation of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests as set out in the Relevant 
Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary Interests) Regulations 2012. 
  
Subject Description 
Employment, office, trade, profession or 
vocation 

Any employment, office, trade, profession or 
vocation carried on for profit or gain. 
[Any unpaid directorship.] 

Sponsorship 
 
 
 
  

Any payment or provision of any other financial 
benefit (other than from the council) made to 
the councillor during the previous 12-month 
period for expenses incurred by him/her in 
carrying out his/her duties as a councillor, or 
towards his/her election expenses. 
This includes any payment or financial benefit 
from a trade union within the meaning of the 
Trade Union and Labour Relations 
(Consolidation) Act 1992. 

Contracts Any contract made between the councillor or 
his/her spouse or civil partner or the person with 
whom the councillor is living as if they were 
spouses/civil partners (or a firm in which such 
person is a partner, or an incorporated body of 
which such person is a director* or a body that 
such person has a beneficial interest in the 
securities of*) and the council 
— 
(a) under which goods or services are to be 

provided or works are to be executed; and 
(b) which has not been fully discharged. 

Land and Property Any beneficial interest in land which is within the 
area of the council. 
‘Land’ excludes an easement, servitude, interest 
or right in or over land which does not give the 
councillor or his/her spouse or civil partner or 
the person with whom the councillor is living as 
if they were spouses/ civil partners (alone or 
jointly with another) a right to occupy or to 
receive income. 

Licenses Any licence (alone or jointly with others) to 
occupy land in the area of the council for a 
month or longer 

Corporate tenancies Any tenancy where (to the councillor’s 
knowledge)— 
(a) the landlord is the council; and 
(b) the tenant is a body that the councillor, or 

his/her spouse or civil partner or the person 
with whom the councillor is living as if they 
were spouses/ civil partners is a partner of or 
a director* of or has a beneficial interest in 
the securities* of. 

Securities Any beneficial interest in securities* of a body 

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/1464/made
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/1464/made


 
Castle Morpeth Local Area Planning Committee, 11 March 2024 

where— 
(a) that body (to the councillor’s knowledge) has 

a place of business or land in the area of the 
council; and 

(b) either— 
i. the total nominal value of the 

securities* exceeds £25,000 or one 
hundredth of the total issued share 
capital of that body; or  

ii. if the share capital of that body is of 
more than one class, the total 
nominal value of the shares of any 
one class in which the councillor, or 
his/ her spouse or civil partner or the 
person with whom the councillor is 
living as if they were spouses/civil 
partners has a beneficial interest 
exceeds one hundredth of the total 
issued share capital of that class. 

 
 

 
* ‘director’ includes a member of the committee of management of an industrial and provident society. 
 
* ‘securities’ means shares, debentures, debenture stock, loan stock, bonds, units of a collective 
investment scheme within the meaning of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 and other 
securities of any description, other than money deposited with a building society. 
 

Table 2: Other Registrable Interests 
 
 
You have a personal interest in any business of your authority where it relates to or is likely to affect: 
 

a) any body of which you are in general control or management and to which you are 
nominated or appointed by your authority 

 
b) any body 

 
i. exercising functions of a public nature 

ii. any body directed to charitable purposes or 
iii. one of whose principal purposes includes the influence of public opinion or policy 

(including any political party or trade union) 
 
 



 

Ch.’s Initials……… 

 
Castle Morpeth Local Area Planning Committee, Monday, 12 February 2024 1 

NORTHUMBERLAND COUNTY COUNCIL 
 

CASTLE MORPETH LOCAL AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 
 
At the meeting of the Castle Morpeth Local Area Planning Committee held at Council 
Chamber - County Hall on Monday, 12 February 2024 at 4.00 pm. 
 

PRESENT 
 

J Foster (Vice-Chair Planning) (in the Chair) 
 
 

MEMBERS 
 

J Beynon R Dodd 
L Dunn M Murphy 
G Sanderson D Towns 
R Wearmouth  

 
 

OFFICERS 
 

M Bulman Solicitor 
L Little Senior Democratic Services Officer 
J Murphy South East DM Area Manager 
R Soulsby Senior Planning Officer 
 
 
There was 1 member of the press and public present. 
 
 
44 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Dickinson and Towns.  
  
 

45 MINUTES 
 
RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting of the Castle Morpeth Local Area 
Planning Committee held on Monday 9 October 2023, as circulated, be confirmed 
as a true record, and be signed by the Chair. 
  
 

46 DETERMINATION OF PLANNING APPLICATIONS 
 
The report requested the Committee to decide the planning applications attached 
to the report using the powers delegated to it. Members were reminded of the 
principles which should govern their consideration of the applications, the 
procedure for handling representations, the requirement of conditions and the 
need for justifiable reasons for the granting of permission or refusal of planning 
applications. 

Page 1

Agenda Item 2



Ch.’s Initials……… 

 
Castle Morpeth Local Area Planning Committee, Monday, 12 February 2024  2 

  
 

47 23/03804/VARYCO 
Variation of Condition 14 (Occupancy) pursuant to planning permission 
12/01313/COU to amend the wording as follows: -, 'The occupation of the 
caravan pitches shall be restricted to genuine holiday makers.  A register of 
holidaymakers shall be kept and made available for inspection by an 
authorised officer of the Council at all reasonable times. Details of the 
alternative occupation of any caravan(s) that may be required shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, prior 
to their first occupation, and shall thereafter be occupied in accordance 
with the approved details unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Local 
Planning Authority.' 
Morpeth Caravan Park, Longhirst, Morpeth, Northumberland, NE61 3HZ 

  
R Soulsby, Senior Planning Officer provided an introduction to the report with the 
aid of a power point presentation.   
  
Mr G Fahy, the applicant addressed the Committee speaking in support of the 
application.  His comments included the following: 
  

•       He understood that planning applications in open countryside were usually 
controversial and Longhirst was no different, however this site was a 
brownfield rateable site, formerly British Rail sidings and later a haulage 
yard. The Northumberland local plan placed the site and land east of the 
main east coast rail line as outside the Green Belt area. The original five-
acre site had been split up decades ago. Approximately one acre was now 
a storage yard and garage, another acre was a plant hire business and the 
other three acres had been regenerated into his holiday rental business. 
The site is less than 50 metres away from the former UK Coal Potland 
surface mining site.  

•       The cottages might be in “open countryside,” but they were not in Green 
Belt and were certainly not in an area of outstanding beauty. 

•       The holiday business was their only source of income and neither himself 
nor his wife had any other employment. Information from their chartered 
accountant had been supplied to the planning department with the 
accounts for the last three years which showed an average profit of £7560 
each.  

•       The cottages had been built on land attached to their own garden and 
there was no intention of selling to make a quick profit, they simply would 
like the chance to run a year-round business and allow their children to 
inherit the cottages. 

•       In addition to his wife and himself the business currently employed 
cleaning staff from Ashington and Blyth and supplied work for the local 
laundrette in Guidepost. If they were unable to extend the current six-
month summer holiday let season, there was a likely that the holiday let 
business would close in the near future. Although holiday cottages on the 
coastline could often prolong their season by several months and charge a 
higher rate, they currently were unable to do this, and short-term winter 
rentals would be a lifeline for the business.  

•       There had been no objections at all to this planning application, with both 
immediate neighbours fully supporting the application and had written to 

Page 2



Ch.’s Initials……… 

 
Castle Morpeth Local Area Planning Committee, Monday, 12 February 2024  3 

the Planning Department to confirm this.  

•       The Parish Council’s response was “no comment” but added that these 
properties already existed and currently operated as holiday homes and 
would not be new builds and if the properties were permanently occupied 
this would not adversely affect the infrastructure of the Parish. 

  
In response to questions from Members of the Committee the following 
information was provided: 
  

•       It was confirmed that the figures contained in paragraph 7.6 were the profit 
figures and not turnover.  There was no definition in planning terms as to 
what was deemed a sustainable profit, however it was considered that it 
had been demonstrated that the business was still viable. 

•       In terms of imposing a condition restricting the use of the cottages for 
family or preventing individual sale on the open market, these were used in 
such instances in granting permissions for annexes to existing dwellings, 
which was different to this application.  It would not be possible to attach a 
condition restricting sale on the open market and any long-term residential 
use was against Planning Policy. 

•       A separate application could be made to vary the existing condition 
restricting the use of the cottages to allow them to be let for holiday 
purposes for up to 9 or twelve months per year. However, this application 
was to remove the occupancy condition and allow the cottages to be used 
for private and residential use.  

  
Councillor Dodd proposed acceptance of the recommendation to refuse the 
application as outlined in the report to allow Members to debate the application 
which was seconded by Councillor Murphy. 
  
In debating the application there were some differing opinions in relation to the 
relevance of the profitability of the holiday rental business in planning terms with a 
suggestion made that the time period could be extended or that access to 
business and marketing support could be considered.  Other Members stated that 
profitability was relevant with other applications being granted by this Committee 
for existing businesses who wished to supplement their income by diversifying.  
Reference was also made to the fact that the cottages were situated on a 
brownfield site and were in a location which was not a typical tourist area.  It was 
clarified that there had been several applications since 2006 for residential use on 
the site and that permission had been given in 2012 for the use of short term 
holiday accommodation.   
  
A vote was taken on the proposal to refuse the application as outlined in the 
report as follows: FOR 4; AGAINST 2; ABSTENTION 2. 
  
RESOLVED that the application be REFUSED for the following reason: 
  
The proposed alteration to the occupancy condition would allow unrestricted 
residential development within the open countryside, whilst also reducing the 
tourism provision within the locality. No justification has been provided to warrant 
the proposed change, thus ensuring conflict with policies STP 1, HOU 8, ECN 12 
and ECN 15 of the Northumberland Local Plan and the National Planning Policy 
Framework. 

Page 3



Ch.’s Initials……… 

 
Castle Morpeth Local Area Planning Committee, Monday, 12 February 2024  4 

  
 

48 APPEALS UPDATE 
 
RESOLVED that the information be noted. 
  
 

 

 

 CHAIR…………………………………….. 
 

        DATE………………………………………. 

Page 4



 

CASTLE MORPETH LOCAL AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE  

DATE: 11 MARCH 2024 

DETERMINATION OF PLANNING APPLICATIONS 

Report of the Director of Housing & Planning (Chief Planning Officer) 

Cabinet Member:  Councillor C Horncastle 

 

Purpose of report 

To request the Castle Morpeth Local Area Planning Committee to decide the 
planning applications attached to this report using the powers delegated to it. 
 

Recommendations 

The Castle Morpeth Local Area Planning Committee is recommended to consider 
the attached planning applications and decide them in accordance with the individual 
recommendations, also taking into account the advice contained in the covering 
report. 

 
Key issues 

Each application has its own particular set of individual issues and considerations 
that must be taken into account when determining the application.  These are set out 
in the individual reports contained in the next section of this agenda. 
 
 
Author and Contact Details 

 
Report author: Rob Murfin 
Director of Housing & Planning 
Rob.Murfin@northumberland.gov.uk 

 
   

Page 5

Agenda Item 4

mailto:Rob.Murfin@northumberland.gov.uk


 
DETERMINATION OF PLANNING APPLICATIONS 
 
Introduction 
 
1. The following section of the agenda consists of planning applications to be 

determined by the North Northumberland Local Area Planning Committee in 
accordance with the current delegation arrangements. Any further information, 
observations or letters relating to any of the applications contained in this 
agenda and received after the date of publication of this report will be reported 
at the meeting. 

 
The Determination of Planning and Other Applications 
 
2. In considering the planning and other applications, members are advised to 

take into account the following general principles: 
 

● Decision makers are to have regard to the development plan, so far as it is 
material to the application 

 
● Applications are to be determined in accordance with the development plan 

unless material considerations indicate otherwise 
 
● Applications should always be determined on their planning merits in the 

light of all material considerations 
 
● Members are reminded that recommendations in favour of giving permission 

must be accompanied by suitable conditions and a justification for giving 
permission, and that refusals of permission must be supported by clear 
planning reasons both of which are defensible on appeal 

 
● Where the Castle Morpeth Local Area Planning Committee is minded to 

determine an application other than in accordance with the Officer’s 
recommendation, clear reasons should be given that can be minuted, and 
appropriate conditions or refusal reasons put forward 

 
3. Planning conditions must meet the tests that are set down in paragraph 56 of 

the NPPF and meet the tests set out in Community Infrastructure Levy 
Regulations 2010. Conditions must be: 

 
a.  necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms; 
b. directly related to the development; and 
c. fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the development.  

 
4. Where councillors are contemplating moving a decision contrary to officer 

advice, they are recommended to consider seeking advice from senior officers 
as to what constitute material planning considerations, and as to what might 
be appropriate conditions or reasons for refusal. 

  

Page 6



Important Copyright Notice 
 
5. The maps used are reproduced from the Ordnance Survey maps with the 

permission of the Controller of Her Majesty’s Stationery office, Crown Copyright 
reserved.   

 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
These are listed at the end of the individual application reports. 

Implications 

Policy Procedures and individual recommendations are in line with 
policy unless otherwise stated 

Finance and 
value for 
money 

None unless stated 

Legal None unless stated  

Procurement None 

Human 
Resources 

None 

Property None 

Equalities 

(Impact 
Assessment 
attached) 

Yes ☐ No ☐   

N/A       ☐ 

Planning applications are considered having regard to the 
Equality Act 2010 

Risk 
Assessment 

None 

Crime & 
Disorder 

As set out in the individual reports 

Customer 
Consideration 

None 

Carbon 
reduction 

Each application will have an impact on the local 
environment, and it has been assessed accordingly 

Wards All 

 
  

Page 7



 

PROCEDURE AT PLANNING COMMITTEE 

A. Chairman welcomes members and members of the public  

Welcome to also include reference:  

(i) Members are asked to keep microphones on mute unless speaking 

(ii)  To switch all mobile phones off.  

(iii) Reminder that if a member leaves the Chamber whilst an application is being 

 considered then they may take no further part in that application.  

B. Record attendance of members  

(i)  Democratic Services Officer (DSO) to announce and record any apologies 

 received.  

C. Minutes of previous meeting and Disclosure of Members’ Interests 

D. Development Management: -  

Application 

Chair     Introduces application  

Site Visit Video (previously circulated)-invite members questions 

 

Planning Officer   Updates – Changes to recommendations – present report  

Public Speaking Objector(s) (up to 5 mins)  

Local member (up to 5 mins)/ parish councillor (up to 5 mins) 

Applicant/Supporter (up to 5 mins)  

NO QUESTIONS IN RELATION TO PUBLIC SPEAKING  

Committee members’ questions to Planning Officers  

Chairman to respond to raised hands of members as to whether they have any 

questions of the Planning Officers  

Debate (Rules)  

Proposal     

Seconded  

DEBATE  

Again, Chairman to respond to raised hand of members as to whether they wish to 

participate in the debate  

No speeches until proposal seconded  

Speech may not exceed 6 minutes  

Page 8



Amendments to Motions  

Approve/Refuse/Defer  

Vote (by majority or Chair’s casting vote) 

Planning Officer confirms and reads out wording of resolution 

Legal officer should then record the vote FOR/AGAINST/ABSTAIN (reminding 

members that they should abstain where they have not heard all the consideration of 

the application) 

 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



 

  
 

 
 
 

 

Castle Morpeth Local Area Committee 
11th March 2024  

 
Application No: 23/02165/FUL 

Proposal: Development of 32no. affordable homes with associated infrastructure, 
drainage and open space 

Site Address Land South of 15-47 Stakeford Crescent, Stakeford Crescent, Stakeford, 
Northumberland 

Applicant: PCL & BG 
C/O Agent  

Agent: Mr Alastair Willis 
Saint Nicholas Building, Saint 
Nicholas Street, Newcastle 
Upon Tyne, NE1 1RF  

Ward Stakeford Parish Choppington 

Valid Date: 13 June 2023 Expiry 
Date: 

12 March 2024 

Case Officer 
Details: 

Name:  Mr Ryan Soulsby 

Job Title:  Senior Planning Officer 

Email: Ryan.Soulsby@northumberland.gov.uk 

 
Recommendation: That this application be GRANTED permission subject to a 
section 106 agreement securing relevant contributions (£19,680 coastal mitigation, 
£20,400 healthcare, £96,000 education and £20,968.74 open space) and 
recommended conditions.  
 

 
 

This material has been reproduced from Ordnance Survey digital map data with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty’s Stationery Office © Crown 
Copyright (Not to Scale) 

 

Page 11

Agenda Item 5



 

1. Introduction 
 
1.1  The application falls to be determined by the local area planning committee as 

a local member has requested such within 21 days of the application being 
registered, in accordance with the current scheme of delegation. 

 
2. Description of the Proposals 
 
2.1 Planning permission is sought for the construction of 32no affordable homes 

with associated infrastructure, drainage and open space on land south of 15-
47 Stakeford Crescent, Stakeford. The application site currently consists of 
undeveloped, agricultural land covered in various soft landscaping and 
planting.  

 
2.2 The proposed 32 dwellings would consist of a housing mix of: 
 

• 10x 2-bedroom bungalows; 

• 2x 3-bedroom bungalows; 

• 7x 2-bedroom two storey properties; 

• 11x 3-bedroom two storey properties (two house types); 

• 2x 4-bedroom two storey properties.  
 

The proposed external material palette consists of red (Leamington Wine) and 
orange (Burnt Maise) facing brickwork, anthracite concrete roof tiles and 
UPVC framed fenestration. Architectural detailing such as stone effect 
windowsills and canopies are also proposed upon the properties.  

 
2.3 A total of 6no house types would be proposed across the site. An overview of 

the proposed house types and the measurements can be found below: 
 

House type NDS-36 – Two-bedroom bungalow 
 

7.64 metres in width by 9.86 metres in length, incorporating a hipped roof that 
measures 5.44 metres to the ridge.  

 
House type 3BB – Three-bedroom bungalow 

 
9.78 metres in width by 12.59 metres in length, incorporating a hipped roof 
that measures 5 metres to the ridge. 

 
House type NDS-33 – Two-bedroom dwellinghouse 

 
5.17 metres in width by 9.36 metres in length, incorporating a pitched roof that 
measures 7.97 metres to the ridge.  

 
House type NDS-31 – Three-bedroom dwellinghouse 

 
6 metres in width by 9.33 metres in length, incorporating a pitched roof that 
measures 8.07 metres to the ridge.  

 
House type NDS-13 – Three-bedroom dwellinghouse 

 

Page 12



 

6 metres in width by 9.3 metres in length, incorporating a pitched roof that 
measures 8.07 metres to the ridge. 

 
House type NDS-19 – Four-bedroom dwellinghouse 

 
6.1 metres in width by 10.34 metres in length, incorporating a pitched roof that 
measures 8.3 metres to the ridge. 

 
2.4 The proposed dwellings would be accessed via the creation of a new access 

from Stakeford Crescent located to the north. A central road would extend 
westwards throughout the site, with various visitor parking spaces located off 
the highway. Parking for occupiers of the proposed dwellings would mostly be 
located to the side of the properties to retain an open feel to the street. Cycle 
parking would be located within the rear gardens of the properties. The 
submitted details also propose parking provision for 6no existing dwellings 
upon Stakeford Crescent with a car parking area proposed adjacent to the site 
entrance.  

 
2.5 The proposed site layout indicates the majority of open space within the 

application site would be located towards the eastern boundary. This would 
include various soft landscaping, including trees and hedges, as well as 
children’s play space. The suds pond for the development is located against 
the eastern boundary of the site. An existing public right of way extends 
throughout the site at present and the application proposes to retain this link, 
albeit within a slightly altered position within the site.  

 
3. Planning History 

 
N/A 

 
4. Consultee Responses 
 

County Archaeologist  No objections.  

Choppington Parish 
Council  

No response received.    

Lead Local Flood 
Authority (LLFA)  

No objection subject to recommended conditions 

Choppington Ward  No response received.    

Highways  No objections subject to recommended conditions.  

Affordable Housing  No response received.    

NHS NORTH EAST 
& CUMBRIA ICB  

No objection subject to securing of healthcare contributions 
(£20,400) 

Waste Management - 
South East  

No response received.    

Climate Change 
Team  

No response received.    

Education - Schools  No objection subject to securing of education contributions 
(£96,000).  

Natural England  No objection subject to securing of contributions to the coastal 
mitigation service.  

Countryside/ Rights 
Of Way  

No objection to the proposed development on the condition 
that Parish of Wansbeck Public Footpath No. 48 is protected 
throughout. I note from the application that it is proposed to 

Page 13



 

build across the definitive line of Parish of Wansbeck Public 
Footpath No. 48, and this would require a legal diversion order 
to be made under section 257 TCPA 1990 to permanently 
divert it onto an alternative route. No construction work should 
take place on the line of the footpath until the diversion order 
has been confirmed. Additionally, a temporary diversion order 
would be required for Parish of Wansbeck Public Footpath 
No. 48 to facilitate access whilst construction is being carried 
out. 
 
These can be secured via planning condition.  

County Ecologist  No objection subject to recommended conditions and 
contributions to the coastal mitigation service (£19,680).   

Public Protection  No objection subject to recommended conditions.  

Fire & Rescue 
Service  

No objection.  

Architectural Liaison 
Officer - Police  

 No response received.    

Northumbria 
Ambulance Service  

 No response received.    

 
 

5. Public Responses 
Neighbour Notification 
 

Number of Neighbours Notified 53 

Number of Objections 40 

Number of Support 1 

Number of General Comments 0 

 
Notices 
 
Stat Pub & PROW Site notice, 27th June 2023  
 
Press notice, News Post Leader, 30th June 2023  
 
Summary of Responses: 
 
40no objections were received against the application from neighbouring residents 
and members of the public. Concerns were raised regarding: 
 

• Safeguarding issues; 

• Highway safety;  

• Traffic congestion;  

• Difficulty for emergency services accessing the site; 

• Poor access to the site; 

• Poor condition of road which is in need of repair; 

• Impacts on wildlife and biodiversity; 

• Negative impact on existing house prices; 

• Noise and disturbance; 

• Loss of open space; 

• Air quality; 

Page 14



 

• Increased flood risk; 
 
1no support comment was received from a member of the public with interest in this 
land, recognising the benefits and need of affordable housing.  
 
Material planning considerations shall be assessed within the below appraisal.  
 
The above is a summary of the comments. The full written text is available on our 
website at: http://publicaccess.northumberland.gov.uk/online-
applications//applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=RW5B60QSIC600   
 
6. Planning Policy 
 
6.1 Development Plan Policy 
 
Northumberland Local Plan 2016 - 2036 (Adopted March 2022) (NLP) 
 
Policy STP 1 - Spatial strategy (strategic policy) 
Policy STP 2 - Presumption in favour of sustainable development (strategic policy) 
Policy STP 3 - Sustainable development (strategic policy) 
Policy STP 4 - Climate change mitigation and adaption (strategic policy) 
Policy STP 5 - Health and wellbeing (strategic policy) 
Policy STP 6 – Green infrastructure (strategic policy) 
Policy HOU 2 – Provision of new residential development (strategic policy) 
Policy HOU 5 – Housing types and mix 
Policy HOU 6 – Affordable housing provision (strategic policy) 
Policy HOU 7 – Exception sites 
Policy HOU 9 – Residential development management 
Policy QOP 1 - Design principles (strategic policy) 
Policy QOP 2 - Good design and amenity 
Policy QOP 4 – Landscaping and trees 
Policy QOP 6 - Delivering well designed places 
Policy TRA 1 - Promoting sustainable connections (strategic policy) 
Policy TRA 2 - The effects of development on the transport network 
Policy TRA 4 - Parking provision in new development 
Policy ENV 1 - Approaches to assessing the impact of development on the natural, 
historic and built environment (strategic policy) 
Policy ENV 2 - Biodiversity and geodiversity 
Policy ENV 7 -Historic environment and heritage assets 
Policy WAT 3 - Flooding 
Policy WAT 4 - Sustainable drainage systems 
Policy POL 1 – Unstable and contaminated land 
Policy POL 2 – Pollution and air, soil and water quality 
Policy MIN 4 – Safeguarding mineral resources (strategic policy) 
Policy INF 5 – Open space and facilities for sport and recreation 
Policy INF 6 – Planning obligations 
 
6.2 National Planning Policy 
 
National Planning Policy Framework (2023) (NPPF) 
National Planning Practice Guidance (2023) (PPG) 
 
7. Appraisal 

Page 15



 

 
7.1  In accordance with Section 38 (6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase 

Act 2004, planning applications should be determined in accordance with the 
development plan, unless material considerations indicate otherwise. In this 
case the development plan comprises of the Northumberland Local Plan 
(NLP). The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) (2023) and Planning 
Practice Guidance (PPG) are material considerations in determining this 
application. 

 

• Principle of development; 

• Design and visual character; 

• Residential amenity; 

• Highway safety; 

• Ecological impacts;   

• Land contamination; 

• Water management; 

• Archaeological impacts; 

• Planning obligations.  
 

Principle of development 
 
7.2 Policy STP 1 of the NLP, read in conjunction with the Policies Map which 

accompanies the Plan, identifies main towns, service centres and service 
villages across the county where sustainable development can be located 
which enhances the vitality of communities, supports economic growth and 
conserves and enhances the County’s unique environmental assets. 
Stakeford, grouped together with Guidepost, Choppington and West 
Sleekburn is recognised as a service centre that will accommodate 
employment, housing and services that maintains and strengthens the role of 
the settlement. The application site is located out with the settlement 
boundary for Stakeford, as defined by the Policies Map. The site is therefore 
recognised as being located within open countryside land.  

 
7.3 Policy STP 1, part g) of the NLP states that “Development in the open 

countryside will be supported if it can be demonstrated that it:  
 

i. Supports the sustainable growth and expansion of existing business or the 
formation of new businesses in accordance with Policy ECN 13; or  
ii. Supports the development and diversification of agricultural and other land-
based rural businesses in accordance with Policy ECN 14; or  
iii. Supports sustainable rural tourism and leisure developments in accordance 
with Policy ECN 15; or  
iv. Provides for residential development in accordance with Policies HOU 7 or 
HOU 8; or  
v. Supports the retention, provision or improvement of accessible local 
services and community facilities which cannot be provided in settlements, in 
accordance with Policy INF 2; or  
vi. Provides for essential transport, utilities and energy infrastructure in 
accordance with other policies in the Local Plan; or vii. Relates to the 
extraction and processing of minerals, in accordance with other policies in the 
Local Plan.” 

 

Page 16



 

As the proposals are for residential development, the decision maker is 
therefore directed to policies HOU 7 and HOU 8 of the NLP. 

7.4 Policy HOU 7 of the NLP relates to the development of entry-level exception 
sites for first time buyers. The policy states proposals “will be supported on 
sites not allocated for housing adjacent to an existing settlement where:  

 
a. There is an evidenced need for affordable entry-level homes that is not 
already being met in the parish in which the development is located, or 
neighbouring parishes, and the proposal wholly comprises one-or-more types 
of affordable housing secured through a Section 106 agreement;  
b. The proposal is consistent with the Plan’s spatial strategy for sustainable 
development and is well-related to local services and facilities;  
c. The site is no larger than 1.0 hectare or does not exceed 5% of the size of 
the existing settlement; and  
d. The site is not within the Green Belt or an Area of Outstanding Natural 
Beauty and does not compromise any protected environmental designations.  

 
7.5 In May 2021, during the final preparation stages of the NLP, the Government 

(through the Written Ministerial Statement (WMS) on First Homes, and 
accompanying PPG) announced that, as part of the introduction of the new 
First Homes tenure of affordable housing, entry-level exception sites would be 
replaced with First Homes Exception Sites with effect from 28 June 2021 – 
the WMS stated with regard to the NPPF’s entry-level exception site policy 
(which had “not delivered affordable housing to the extent originally 
envisaged”) that “the Government is replacing this policy with a ‘First Homes 
exception sites’ policy, in order to encourage First Homes-led developments 
on land that is not currently allocated for housing”. The inspector of the NLP at 
the time did not consider it appropriate for the local planning authority to 
consult on further variations of the NLP despite this policy amendment. Whilst 
reference to entry-level exception sites remained within the NPPF, the most 
recent version published in December 2023 makes reference to the First 
Homes exception site policy. 

 
7.6 It is recognised that First Homes exception site policy continues to support the 

provision of affordable housing on land outside of the development plan with 
the WMS amendment initiated due to the lack of entry-level sites upon a 
national level. The provisions of policy HOU 7 therefore remain relevant, 
despite not being wholly consistent with national planning, in that it aims to 
achieve affordable housing throughout the County. The LPA must therefore 
determine whether there is accordance with the application proposals and 
parts 1a) – 1d) of HOU 7, as referenced within paragraph 7.4 of this report.  

 
7.7 The site is clearly adjacent to the existing settlement of Stakeford with the 

current settlement boundary as defined by the NLP Policies Map, ending upon 
the northern boundary of the application site. Existing residential development 
bounds the site to the north and west whilst the site can be appropriately 
linked to the settlement through the provision of additional footpaths and a 
highway. The proposal site is well related to local services and facilities which 
are accessible through sustainable transport methods and whilst the site does 
exceed 1 hectare, it does not exceed 5% of the existing settlement of 
Stakeford. The site is not designated Green Belt land or within an AONB with 
no environmental designations.  

 

Page 17



 

7.8 As part of the application documents, the applicant has provided an affordable 
housing statement which sets out need for affordable housing within the area. 
Additional data was provided by the applicant on 11th January 2024 which 
provides further evidence to support their claim.  

 
7.9 The Northumberland Homefinder data provided by the applicant outlines that 

approximately 20no bids are received for each 2-bedroom bungalow within 
the locality, 56no bids are received for 2-bedroom dwellings, 37no bids are 
received for 3-bedroom properties and 30no bids are received for 4-bedroom 
dwellings. Whilst this data does not factor that those bidding on the properties 
may not currently live within Stakeford, it does provide evidence that there is 
an evident need for affordable properties within the area that cannot currently 
be accommodated through the existing housing stock. 

 
7.10 It is clear from the evidence provided by the applicant, and internal 

discussions with the housing enablers team, that there is an identified need 
for affordable housing within the settlement of Stakeford and that the provision 
of 32no affordable homes will assist in addressing this need. Policy HOU 5 of 
the NLP seeks for developments to provide a good housing mix with the 
proposal site providing bungalows as well as 2-, 3- and 4-bedroom properties. 
The site is a suitable location for affordable housing, benefitting from good 
transport links and local amenities as well as being situated close to larger 
towns such as Ashington, Bedlington and Morpeth. The consultation response 
provided by the housing enablers team recognises that all types of affordable 
housing would be suitable upon the site.  

 
7.11 To ensure appropriate affordable housing tenures upon the site, a legal 

agreement attached to a permission for the site should include the 
requirement for an affordable housing scheme to be submitted to the Council 
for approval prior to the commencement of development. This document 
should set out the agreed tenure mix and plots for affordable homes, any 
alternative tenure options, the timing of their delivery, arrangements for their 
ownership and management, provisions for them to remain as affordable 
housing in perpetuity (where applicable in terms of the NPPF definition), any 
arrangements for the marketing of affordable home ownership products, and 
the basis on which the affordable homes will be occupied. If shared ownership 
was to be incorporated upon the site, these homes may not go to local people 
due to Homes England grant funding provisions preventing any locality 
clauses from being included upon a section 106 agreement.  

 
7.12 The local planning authority are therefore satisfied that the principle of 

residential development upon the application site is acceptable, in accordance 
with the provisions of policies STP 1, HOU 5 and HOU 7 of the NLP as well as 
the NPPF.  

 
 Design and visual character 
 
7.13 Policy HOU 9 of the NLP states that residential developments will be 

supported where they "contribute to a sense of place, which supports 
community identity and pride" whilst being "constructed to a high-quality 
design". Policy QOP 1 is relevant within this assessment and states that 
development proposals should "make a positive contribution to local character 
and distinctiveness and contribute to a positive relationship between built and 

Page 18



 

natural features, including landform and topography". Proposals should also 
"create or contribute to a strong sense of place and integrate the built form of 
the development with the site overall".  

 
7.14 The NPPF at paragraph 131 recognises good design as a key aspect of 

sustainable development with paragraph 135 noting developments should be 
visually attractive as a result of good architecture, layout and appropriate and 
effective landscaping. Paragraph 139 of the NPPF outlines that development 
that is not well designed should be refused, especially where it fails to reflect 
local design policies and government guidance on design.  

 
7.15 As part of the application assessment, a site visit was undertaken by the 

planning officer to assess the application site and the surrounding area. The 
site currently consists of overgrown grassed land with various trees and 
hedging located across the site and upon the northern boundary, providing 
clear separation with the existing properties upon Stakeford Crescent. A 
public right of way cuts across the centre of the application site, whilst 
agricultural fields bound the site to the east and west. The existing properties 
located to the north are two-storey, semi-detached dwellings constructed in 
red facing brickwork, concrete roof tiles and white UPVC framed fenestration. 
Roof profiles consist of pitched and hipped roofs with certain properties 
benefitting from flat roofed extensions at ground, and in some instances, first 
floor, level.  

 
7.16 There is a slightly greater housing mix upon properties located to the west 

upon Oxford Road and Cottingwood Place however, two-storey semi-
detached properties are the main dwelling type within this area. External 
materials consist of red facing brickwork, white/cream render and pebbledash. 
Almost all properties within the neighbouring streets benefit from front and 
rear external amenity space. Two storey properties remain prevalent upon 
Stakeford Lane, the main public highway running through the settlement, with 
various commercial premises located upon this road such as a petrol station, 
public house and hairdressers.  

 
7.17 A design and access statement forms part of the application documents and 

sets out the applicants site analysis and context as well as the design 
concept. The document states the proposals seek to create an “interesting 
street scene” with the siting of open space and suds to create “an attractive 
and inviting entrance into the development site”. Various design cues have 
been taken from existing properties within the immediate locality, most notably 
all dwellings having private garden space to the rear of properties, mirroring 
dwellings upon Stakeford Crescent and Oxford Road.  

 
7.18 The proposed scale, massing and form of the dwellings are acceptable and 

the total number of dwellings appears to be respectful of the site, not 
constituting an overdevelopment that would negatively impact upon the 
character of the immediate and wider landscape. The housing mix of 
bungalows and 2-, 3- and 4- bedroom properties is welcomed with all 
properties benefitting from good levels of internal space as well as private 
outdoor amenity space to the rear. The provision of soft landscaping to the 
frontage of all properties ensures a pleasing street scene, whilst the 
considerable area of open space upon the eastern boundary of the site 

Page 19



 

ensures a lessened impact caused upon the adjacent agricultural land from 
the proposed built form.  

 
7.19 Fenestration has been appropriately sited in a uniform manner upon the 

external elevations of the proposed dwellings with the provision of hipped and 
pitched roofs resulting in matching roof profiles with existing dwellings to the 
north and west. The proposed external material palette appears to be 
consistent with materials already existing upon neighbouring streets and to 
ensure the LPA retain a level of control over the external appearance of the 
properties, it would be appropriate for material samples to be provided prior to 
the construction of the development above damp-proof course level.  

 
7.20 Subject to an appropriately worded condition securing the submission of 

material samples, the LPA consider the proposed development to represent 
good design. The applicant has given careful consideration to the character of 
the settlement of Stakeford and design cues have been taken from existing 
properties that would ensure the site relates well to the area and does not 
appear as an incongruous addition. The proposals are therefore considered to 
accord with the provisions of policies HOU 9 and QOP 1 of the NLP and the 
NPPF on design grounds. 

 
 Residential amenity 
 
7.21 Policy QOP 2 of the NLP states that "development will be required to provide 

a high standard of amenity for existing and future users of the development 
itself and not cause unacceptable harm to the amenity of those living in, 
working in or visiting the local area". The policy goes on to note that the 
physical presence and design of a development must not be visually obtrusive 
or overbearing upon neighbouring uses. The best outcomes for outlook 
should be achieved wherever possible.  

 
7.22 Paragraph 135, part f) of the NPPF states proposals must "create places that 

are safe, inclusive and accessible and which promote health and well-being, 
with a high standard of amenity for existing and future users".  

 
7.23 As part of the officers site visit, an assessment in relation to residential 

amenity was undertaken, identifying potential impacts upon existing residents 
as well as future occupiers of the proposed dwellings. Following the 
submission of amended plans, a minimum separation distance of 20 metres 
will now exist between the rear elevation of plots 15-32 and the rear of 
existing dwellings upon Stakeford Crescent. Amendments to the internal 
layout were also undertaken to ensure 20 metres was retained between the 
primary facing elevations of plots 11-18, thus protecting the privacy and 
amenity of future residents. A separation distance of 22 metres would exist 
between the gable of plot 14, the most westerly plot upon the site, and the 
adjacent dwelling within Collingwood Place. 

 
7.24 Future occupiers of the proposed dwellings would benefit from acceptable 

levels of amenity with appropriate internal floor space incorporated within all 
house types and private outdoor amenity space available to all properties. 
Fenestration has been appropriately sited upon all properties to ensure that 
there would be no direct overlooking or privacy concerns between the 
proposed dwellings.  

Page 20



 

 
7.25 Consultation was undertaken with the local authority’s Environmental 

Protection team who raised no objection to the proposals on amenity grounds. 
A condition is recommended to restrict development and construction work to 
the hours of 0800-18:00 on weekdays, 08:00-13:00 on Saturdays with no 
working on Sundays, Public or Bank Holidays. A further condition is 
recommended to secure the submission of a dust management plan prior to 
the commencement of development, to ensure existing properties are not 
adversely impacted upon by dust generated from the proposed works.  

 
7.26 Subject to the recommended conditions from the local authority’s 

Environmental Protection team, the LPA are satisfied that the proposals would 
not significantly impact upon the amenity of neighbouring properties or future 
occupiers of the proposed dwellings, therefore according with the provisions 
of policy QOP 2 of the NLP and the NPPF.  

 
 Highway safety 
 
7.27 Policy TRA 1 of the NLP recognises that transport implications of a 

development must be addressed as part of any planning application. 
Proposals should "Promote a spatial distribution which creates accessible 
development, reduces the need to travel by car, and maximises the use of 
sustainable modes of transport". Policy TRA 2 states that all developments 
affecting the transport network will be required to "provide effective and safe 
access and egress to the existing transport network" and "include appropriate 
and effective measures to avoid, mitigate and manage any impacts on 
highway capacity".   

 
7.28 Policy TRA 4 of the NLP is also relevant within this assessment and seeks for 

appropriate levels of off-street parking to be incorporated within all 
developments.  

 
7.29 Paragraph 115 of the NPPF states that "development should only be 

prevented or refused on highways grounds if there would be an unacceptable 
impact on highway safety, or the residual cumulative impacts on the road 
network would be severe". 

 
7.30 Consultation was undertaken with highways development management who, 

following the submission of additional information, raised no objection to the 
application proposals subject to recommended conditions. The LPA recognise 
that a significant number of objections received from residents cited concerns 
in relation to highway safety therefore a full assessment in relation to any 
impacts has been undertaken. As part of the application documents, a 
transport statement has been submitted which provides data confirming that 
there have been no recent incidents along Stakeford Crescent or its junctions 
with the Stakeford Lane public highway. This has been verified with 
Gateshead TADU in November 2022. In the interests of highway and 
pedestrian safety, a condition has been recommended by highways 
development management that a construction method statement together with 
supporting plan, be submitted to the local planning authority for written 
approval prior to the commencement of any on site development.  

7.31 Alterations to the proposed plans were undertaken by the applicant, relocating 
various plots within the site to allow for appropriate manoeuvring space for 

Page 21



 

vehicles. Highways development management are satisfied that these 
amendments will allow appropriate vehicle movement within the site without 
detrimentally impacting upon highway safety. Sufficient levels of visitor 
parking have been demonstrated upon the plans whilst a parking area for 
existing residents on Stakeford Lane has been proposed towards the northern 
boundary of the site. Management and maintenance of this area shall be 
secured via an appropriately worded planning condition.  

 
7.32 The proposals demonstrate EV points, cycle parking and refuse storage within 

all plots. Appropriate vehicle parking provision has been demonstrated, in the 
majority of cases served by hardstanding located to the side of the property. 
The applicant has also submitted a S38 plan for adoption for the proposed 
development, this will be subject to technical approval through the Agreement 
process, and that the layout must conform to the necessary standards 
required to be considered for adoption. Any minor amendments required for 
the given layout will be picked up during the technical approval process.  

 
7.33 A new access to the application site will be formed from Stakeford Crescent 

with appropriate visibility splays demonstrated to allow for safe ingress and 
egress at the site. The proposed access should provide drainage measures to 
prevent surface water run-off onto adjacent land and these details shall be 
secured through the highways agreement process. Precise details shall then 
be submitted to the local planning authority for written approval, prior to 
occupation of the development.  

 
7.34 A public right of way (Parish of Wansbeck Public Footpath no.48) passes 

through the proposed development site. Consultation was undertaken with the 
local authority’s rights of way team who raised no objection to the application 
proposals, subject to a legal diversion order being made under section 257 
TCPA 1990 to permanently divert the path to an alternative route. The 
submitted details indicate that internal footpath connections would be created 
to allow a diverted right of way throughout the site, however, no construction 
work should commence on site until the diversion order for the right of way 
has been confirmed.  

 
7.35 Additionally, a temporary diversion order would be required for the right of 

way to facilitate access whilst construction is being carried out. There is a 
charge for a temporary path closure which can last up to 6 months. This can 
then be extended should a further closure period be required with an 
application to The Secretary of State through the County Council, but the 
application must be made at least one month prior to the expiry of the original 
application. Appropriately worded conditions have been recommended by the 
local authority’s rights of way team to secure this further information.  

 
7.36 Subject to conditions recommended by the local authority’s highways and 

rights of way team, the local planning authority consider that concerns in 
relation to highway safety have been addressed by the applicant through the 
submission of further information. The proposals therefore accord with the 
provisions of policies TRA 1, TRA 2 and TRA 4 of the NLP, as well as the 
NPPF, in relation to highway safety. 

 
 Ecological impacts 
 

Page 22



 

7.37 Policy ENV 2 of the NLP states that developments should minimise their 
impact upon biodiversity and geodiversity and where possible, secure net 
gains. If adverse impacts cannot be adequately mitigated, the LPA may 
request as a last resort that these are compensated for. These provisions are 
mirrored within paragraph 180 of the NPPF.  

 
7.38 Consultation was undertaken with the local authority's ecologist who, following 

the submission of additional information, raised no objection to the application 
proposals subject to recommended conditions. The application is supported 
with an ‘ecological appraisal’ which has classified the existing habitats present 
on site as of local value, dominated by a small range of common species. The 
Appraisal has however noted that the site may be used by protected and / or 
notable species including breeding birds, badger (although no evidence was 
recorded), hedgehog, and hare. The presence of an existing right of way and 
regular recreational use may however reduce its value for these species. The 
Ecological Appraisal does however recommend that precautionary working 
methods are employed during the construction phase to ensure that the risk of 
direct impacts on protected / notable species are minimised / avoided. 

 
7.39 To compensate for the loss of existing habitat, the Ecological Appraisal 

recommends that SuDS and open space areas are designed to promote 
biodiversity by including appropriate species rich grassland mixes; landscape 
planting to include native berry and fruit bearing species to provide increased 
foraging opportunities for birds and invertebrates; and the provision of bat and 
bird boxes incorporated within the new buildings at a ratio of one per dwelling. 
An updated ‘landscape masterplan’ and additional ‘POS details plan’ have 
been provided to show the above details.  

 
7.40 The Public Open Space (POS) drawing (R/2625/4) states that aftercare shall 

be in accordance with the approved Landscape Management Document. 
However, this document does not appear to have been submitted and its 
provision should be secured by means of a condition requiring the submission 
of a Landscape and Ecological Management Plan. 

 
7.41 As this is a proposed residential development within 10km of the coast, 

consideration will need to be given to the impact of increased recreational 
disturbance to bird species that are interest features of the coastal SSSIs and 
European sites, and increased recreational pressure on dune grasslands 
which are similarly protected. When developers apply for planning permission 
for new residential development within the coastal zone of influence, the LPA 
has to fulfil its obligations under the Wildlife and Countryside Act (for SSSIs) 
and the Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations (for SPAs, SACs 
and Ramsar Sites), by ensuring that the development will not have adverse 
impacts on designated sites. Until now, the LPA have required the developer 
to devise suitable mitigation, supported by survey work that they have 
commissioned. However, due to growing concerns about the effectiveness of 
mitigation that does not include direct management of the protected areas 
themselves, the Council has introduced a scheme whereby developers can 
pay a contribution into a strategic mitigation service which will be used to fund 
coastal wardens who will provide the necessary mitigation. 

 
7.42 Contribution to the Coastal Mitigation Service enables a conclusion of no 

adverse effect on site integrity to be reached when a planning application is 

Page 23



 

subject to appropriate assessment, without the developer having to 
commission any survey or mitigation work. Similarly, it enables a conclusion 
of no adverse effect on the interest features of coastal SSSIs. The 
contribution of £615 per unit can be secured through a legal agreement 
attached to the granting of a planning permission and the applicant has 
agreed to these contributions, totalling £19,680 (£615 x 32). A section 106 
agreement to secure these contributions has been secured during the 
planning process. The local planning authority therefore consider the 
proposals to accord with the provisions of policies ENV 2 and INF 6 of the 
NLP as well as the NPPF.  

 
 Land contamination 
 
7.43 Policy POL 1 of the NLP outlines that "development proposals will be 

supported where it can be demonstrated that unacceptable risks from land 
instability and contamination will be prevented by ensuring the development is 
appropriately located and that measures can be taken to effectively mitigate 
the impacts". 

 
7.44 Policy POL 2 of the NLP is also relevant within this assessment and states 

that "Development proposals in locations where they would cause, or be put 
at unacceptable risk of harm from, or be adversely affected by pollution by 
virtue of the emissions of fumes, particles, effluent, radiation, smell, heat, 
light, noise or noxious substances will not be supported". Both of these 
provisions are mirrored within the NPPF. 

 
7.45 Consultation was undertaken with the local authority's environmental 

protection team regarding the application proposals. As part of the application 
documents, a phase 1 geoenvironmental report has been provided as well as 
two phase 2 reports. The first Phase 2 report reference no. N19199G, dated 
September 2019 was prepared by Patrick Parsons and a more recent report 
number 22082-01, dated 28 July 2022 was prepared by Coast Consulting 
Engineers Ltd. The latter report confirms that there are no contaminants of 
concern which may potentially pose a risk to human health for the proposed 
residential end-use and that no remedial measures are required. The local 
authority’s environmental protection team are satisfied with this 
recommendation and have requested an appropriately worded condition 
relating to a contamination watching brief be attached to any approval for the 
site.  

 
7.46 A ground gas risk assessment has also been provided by the applicant as 

part of the submission. Slightly elevated concentrations of carbon dioxide 
(max. 3.7% v/v) were recorded with no methane detected. Significantly 
depleted oxygen concentrations were recorded with the lowest readings at 
between 4.9 and 10.9% v/v. Utilising carbon dioxide as the worst-case 
assessment criteria for the site in accordance with C665 guidance, a GSV of 
>0.7 and <3.5l/hr would classify the site as Characteristic Situation (CS) CS3 
or moderate risk. However, the report concludes that the observed flow rates 
are considered to be false positives that are not representative of elevated 
gas flow rates across the site and goes on to state that if the GSV with 
respect to carbon dioxide are recalculated using more representative steady 
gas flow rates that were observed after the initial positive gas pressures had 
dissipated (max. 0.1l/hr), it is below the threshold of 0.07l/hr that would 

Page 24



 

classify the site as CS1. Conditions have been recommended by the local 
authority’s environmental protection team to secure the provision of ground 
gas protection within all plots to protect the amenity of future residents.  

 
7.47 Subject to the conditions recommended by the local authority’s environmental 

protection team, the LPA consider the proposals to accord with the provisions 
of policies POL 1 and POL 2 of the NLP, and the NPPF, in relation to land 
contamination.  

 
 Water management 
 
7.48 Policy WAT 3 of the NLP outlines that development proposals must 

demonstrate how they will minimise flood risk to people, property and 
infrastructure from all potential sources. These provisions are mirrored within 
paragraph 173 of the NPPF. Policy WAT 4 of the NLP seeks for sustainable 
drainage systems to be incorporated within all developments. 

 
7.49 Paragraph 175 of the NPPF stipulates that “major developments should 

incorporate sustainable drainage systems unless there is clear evidence that 
this would be inappropriate”.  

 
7.50 The application form outlines that surface water will be disposed of via 

existing mains and sustainable drainage systems whilst foul sewage will have 
a connection to existing mains drainage. Consultation was undertaken with 
the Lead Local Flood Authority (LLFA) team who, following the submission of 
additional information, raised no objection to the application proposals subject 
to recommended conditions. LLFA are satisfied that the proposed 
development appropriately addresses flood risk on site and appropriately 
worded conditions have been recommended to secure maintenance of the 
drainage schemes on site, most notably the large SuDS basin proposed to the 
eastern boundary.  

 
7.51 Conditions have also been requested that would secure details of the disposal 

of surface water during the construction phase on site as well as the 
submission of a verification report prior to first occupation of the development, 
demonstrating that the SuDS have been installed as approved and are in full 
working order. Subject to these conditions, the LPA consider the proposed 
development to accord with the provisions of policies WAT 3 and WAT 4 of 
the NLP and the NPPF in relation to flood risk and drainage.  

 
Archaeological impacts 

 
7.52 Policy ENV 7 of the NLP details that “Development proposals will be 

assessed and decisions made that ensure the conservation and enhancement 
of the significance, quality and integrity of Northumberland’s heritage assets 
and their settings”. It goes on to note that “Decisions affecting a heritage asset 
will be based on a sound understanding of the significance of that asset and 
the impact of any proposal upon that significance”. 

 
7.53 Paragraph 200 of the NPPF states “Where a site on which development is 

proposed includes, or has the potential to include, heritage assets with 
archaeological interest, local planning authorities should require developers to 

Page 25



 

submit an appropriate desk-based assessment and, where necessary, a field 
evaluation”.  

 
7.54 As part of the application assessment, consultation was undertaken with the 

local authority’s archaeology who, following the submission of an additional 
report, confirmed no objection to the application proposals on archaeological 
grounds. The application is supported by an archaeological desk-based 
assessment (DBA) and geophysical survey report (January 2024). The DBA 
noted no designated heritage assets are recorded in the site or Study Area. It 
considered that the potential for significant unrecorded archaeological 
remains of prehistoric, Roman and early medieval remains within the site was 
low but noted that a geophysical survey would be appropriate to inform a 
more robust assessment of the archaeological potential. The DBA suggested 
that the site was likely to be in agricultural use through the medieval and post-
medieval periods and that buried remains relating to medieval or early post-
medieval agriculture, such as ploughing or drainage features may survive 
within the site. 

 
7.55 The geophysical survey undertaken identified a number of sub-surface 

geophysical anomalies. These were interpreted as being associated with 
modern disturbance, agricultural activity or background geological origin. No 
evidence of pre-modern activity was detected within the survey area. 
Archaeological geophysical survey will not always detect all archaeological 
remains within a given site. In this case, noting the relatively small area of the 
application site, the risk of significant unrecorded archaeological remains 
being present within the site is considered be low. No further archaeological 
work is therefore required on site with the proposals according within the 
provisions of policy ENV 7 of the NLP and the NPPF.  

 
Planning obligations 

 
7.56 Policy INF 6 of the NLP states:  
 

“1. Where it is not possible to address any unacceptable impacts of 
development through the use of planning conditions, planning obligations will 
be secured to ensure that otherwise unacceptable development can be made 
acceptable.  
2. Planning obligations will be used, as necessary, to ensure that 
development meets relevant planning policy requirements set out in the Local 
Plan and any made neighbourhood plans.  
3. Planning obligations will only be sought where they meet all of the following 
tests which require that they are:  
a. necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms;  
b. directly related to the development; and  
c. fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the development.” 
 

7.57 A financial contribution towards healthcare has been calculated for the 
proposed development, totalling £20,400. This financial contribution would 
allow a smooth implementation of the required surgery capacity extension and 
the payment should be made on completion of the first dwelling. This would 
ensure that the new health capacity is in place once the dwellings are 
occupied. The applicant has agreed to this contribution which shall be 
secured via a section 106 agreement.  

Page 26



 

 
7.58 An education contribution of £96,000 has been calculated for the proposed 

development. The consultation response from the local authority’s education 
team recognises that given the current capacity in schools in the area where 
this application would be developed and the number of dwellings proposed, 
there would be an impact on educational infrastructure on either mainstream 
or SEND provision the area. The financial contribution would mitigate this 
impact and would be required at three different points within the development. 
33% at the completion of the first house, 33% at the completion of 25% of the 
dwellings and 33% at the completion of 75% of the dwellings. Again, the 
applicant has agreed to this contribution which shall be secured via a section 
106 agreement. 

 
7.59 As previously set out within paragraphs 7.41 and 7.42 of this report, the 

proposals represent a residential development within 10km of the coast, 
therefore ensuring a contribution to the coastal mitigation service is required. 
This has been calculated at £19,680 and is required prior to occupation of the 
first dwelling on site. The applicant has agreed to this contribution which shall 
be secured within the section 106 agreement. 

 
7.60 A financial contribution of £20,968.74 has been calculated for parks and 

gardens (off-site) which shall go towards improvement of such areas within 
the locality. Appendix H of the NLP sets out that “off-site contributions for 
open space will be spent within the accessible distances for the respective 
provision of open space identified in Table H3 (accessibility standards)”. The 
applicant has provided sufficient natural green space and children’s play 
space on site to ensure that further financial contributions are not required 
however, a maintenance and management plan and additional details of the 
proposed play equipment are required, both of which can be secured via 
planning condition. The applicant has agreed to the open space financial 
contribution.  

 
Equality Duty 

  
7.61 The County Council has a duty to have regard to the impact of any proposal 

on those people with characteristics protected by the Equality Act. Officers 
have had due regard to Sec 149(1) (a) and (b) of the Equality Act 2010 and 
considered the information provided by the applicant, together with the 
responses from consultees and other parties, and determined that the 
proposal would have no material impact on individuals or identifiable groups 
with protected characteristics. Accordingly, no changes to the proposal were 
required to make it acceptable in this regard. 

  
Crime and Disorder Act Implications 

 
7.62 These proposals have no implications in relation to crime and disorder. 
  

Human Rights Act Implications 
 
7.63 The Human Rights Act requires the County Council to take into account the 

rights of the public under the European Convention on Human Rights and 
prevents the Council from acting in a manner which is incompatible with those 
rights. Article 8 of the Convention provides that there shall be respect for an 

Page 27



 

individual's private life and home save for that interference which is in 
accordance with the law and necessary in a democratic society in the 
interests of (inter alia) public safety and the economic wellbeing of the 
country. Article 1 of protocol 1 provides that an individual's peaceful 
enjoyment of their property shall not be interfered with save as is necessary in 
the public interest. 

 
7.64 For an interference with these rights to be justifiable the interference (and the 

means employed) needs to be proportionate to the aims sought to be 
realised. The main body of this report identifies the extent to which there is 
any identifiable interference with these rights. The Planning Considerations 
identified are also relevant in deciding whether any interference is 
proportionate. Case law has been decided which indicates that certain 
development does interfere with an individual's rights under Human Rights 
legislation. This application has been considered in the light of statute and 
case law and the interference is not considered to be disproportionate. 

 
7.75 Officers are also aware of Article 6, the focus of which (for the purpose of this 

decision) is the determination of an individual's civil rights and obligations. 
Article 6 provides that in the determination of these rights, an individual is 
entitled to a fair and public hearing within a reasonable time by an 
independent and impartial tribunal. Article 6 has been subject to a great deal 
of case law. It has been decided that for planning matters the decision making 
process as a whole, which includes the right of review by the High Court, 
complied with Article 6. 

 
8. Conclusion 
 
8.1 The principle of development is recognised as acceptable in accordance with 

the provisions of the Northumberland Local Plan and National Planning Policy 
Framework. The application documents address technical matters on site in 
relation to design, amenity, highway safety, ecological impacts, land 
contamination and further matters. Appropriately worded conditions and 
financial contributions, secured through a section 106 agreement, will also 
address additional impacts. 

 
8.2 The application is therefore recommended for approval.  
 
9. Recommendation 
 

That this application be GRANTED permission subject to a section 106  
 agreement securing relevant contributions (£19,680 coastal mitigation,  
 £20,400 healthcare, £96,000 education and £20,968.74 open space) and  
 recommended conditions.  
 
Conditions/Reason 
 
01. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of 

three years from the date of this permission. 
 

Reason: To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 
1990 (as amended). 

 

Page 28



 

02. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in complete 
accordance with the approved plans and documents. The approved plans and 
documents for this development are:-  

 
1) Location plan 001 D 
2) Landscape masterplan R/2625/1C 
3) Engineering layout D001 4 
4) Engineering layout with SW outfall D002 4 
5) Surface and foul water outfall location D202 2 
6) Flood routing plan D203 2 
7) Typical SuDS details D204 2 
8) Proposed longsections D300 3 
9) Suds identification plan D500 2 
10) Direct comparison outfall plan D600 4 
11) Road construction details D700 1 
12) Proposed drainage details D701 1 
13) Proposed plans NDS-36  
14) Proposed plans NDS-13(FA) 
15) Proposed plans NDS-31/01 
16) Proposed plans NDS-33(M4(2)) 
17) Proposed plans 3BB 000 C 
18) Proposed site plan 003 Y 
19) Proposed boundary treatment plan 004 I 
20) Proposed materials plan 005 E 
21) Ecological appraisal 22186 V3 
22) Flood risk assessment and drainage strategy FRA&DS/AE/20035 v4 
23) Gas verification strategy report 22082-02 A 
24) Phase 2 geoenvironmental appraisal 22082-01 A 
25) SuDS maintenance plan 20035/AE/SuDS 4 
26) Landscape details S1-S18 R/2625/2A 
27) Landscape details S19-S33 R/2625/3A 
28) Landscape POS details R/2625/4A 
29) Ornamental planting details R/2625/5A 
30) Section 38 plan D800 1 
31) Proposed plans NDS-19(V1)/01 
32) Proposed materials plan 005 G 

 
Reason: To ensure that the approved development is carried out in complete 
accordance with the approved plans. 

 
3)  Notwithstanding any description of the materials in the application, prior to 

construction above damp-proof course level of the dwellings hereby 
approved, precise details of the materials to be used in the construction of the 
external walls, roof and fenestration of the building, shall be submitted to, and 
approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority. Development must not 
be undertaken above damp-proof course level until approval from the Local 
Planning Authority has been provided in writing.  All external facing materials 
used in the construction of the development shall conform to the materials 
thereby approved. 

 
Reason: To retain control over the external appearance of the development 
from the outset in the interests of amenity and in accordance with the 

Page 29



 

provisions of in accordance with the provisions of policy QOP 1 of the 
Northumberland Local Plan and the National Planning Policy Framework. 
 

4)  Development shall not commence until a Construction Method Statement, 
together with a supporting plan has been submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority. The approved Construction Method 
Statement shall be adhered to throughout the construction period. The 
Construction Method Statement and plan shall, where applicable, provide for:  
 
i. details of temporary traffic management measures, temporary access, 
routes and vehicles;  
ii. vehicle cleaning facilities;  
iii. the parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors;  
iv. the loading and unloading of plant and materials;  
v. storage of plant and materials used in constructing the development;  
vi. details of the size and number of HGV’s associated with the construction 
phase of the development.  
 
Reason: To prevent nuisance in the interests of residential amenity and 
highway safety, in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework 
and Policy TRA2 of the Northumberland Local Plan. 

 
5)  No dwelling shall be occupied until the car parking area indicated on the 

approved plans, has been implemented in accordance with the approved 
plans. Thereafter, the car parking area shall be retained in accordance with 
the approved plans and shall not be used for any purpose other than the 
parking of vehicles associated with the development.  

 
Reason: In the interests of highway safety, in accordance with the National 
Planning Policy Framework and Policy TRA 4 of the Northumberland Local 
Plan. 

 
6) Development shall not commence until details of the proposed highway works 

to facilitate access to the site by vehicles, pedestrians and cyclists and 
associated works, details of PRoW works, along with a timetable for 
implementation have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. The approved highway works shall be constructed in 
accordance with the approved plans and in accordance with the approved 
timetable for implementation.  

 
Reason: In the interests of highway safety, in accordance with the National 
Planning Policy Framework and Policy TRA 2 of the Northumberland Local 
Plan. 

 
7) No development shall commence until an Estate Street Phasing and 

Completion Plan has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. The Estate Street Phasing and Completion Plan shall set 
out the development phases, completion sequence and construction 
standards that estate streets serving each phase of the development will be 
completed. The development shall then be carried out in accordance with the 
approved Estate Street Phasing and Completion Plan.  

 

Page 30



 

Reason: To ensure estate streets serving the development are completed in 
the interests of residential amenity and highway safety, in accordance with the 
National Planning Policy Framework and Policies TRA 1 and TRA 2 of the 
Northumberland Local Plan. 

 
8) No development above damp-proof course level shall commence until details 

of proposed arrangements for future management and maintenance of the 
proposed streets within the site have been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. Following occupation of the first 
dwelling on the site, the streets shall be maintained in accordance with the 
approved management and maintenance details.  

 
Reason: To ensure estate streets serving the development are completed in 
the interests of residential amenity and highway safety, in accordance with the 
National Planning Policy Framework and Policies TRA 1 and TRA 2 of the 
Northumberland Local Plan. 

 
9) No works to the streets proposed for adoption shall commence until full 

engineering, drainage, street lighting and constructional details of the streets 
proposed for adoption have been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. Thereafter, the development shall be constructed in 
accordance with the approved details, unless otherwise agreed in writing with 
the Local Planning Authority.  

 
Reason: In the interests of highway safety and to safeguard the amenities of 
the locality and users of the highway in accordance with the National Planning 
Policy Framework and Policies TRA 1 and TRA 2 of the Northumberland 
Local Plan. 

 
10) No dwelling shall be occupied until cycle parking shown on the approved 

plans has been implemented. Thereafter, the cycle parking shall be retained 
in accordance with the approved plans and shall be kept available for the 
parking of cycles at all times.  
 
Reason: In the interests of highway safety, residential amenity, and 
sustainable development, in accordance with the National Planning Policy 
Framework and Policy TRA1 of the Northumberland Local Plan. 

 
11) Prior to occupation, details of surface water drainage to manage run off from 

private land have been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning 
Authority. The approved surface water drainage scheme shall be 
implemented in accordance with the approved details before the development 
is occupied and thereafter maintained in accordance with the approved 
details.  

 
Reason: In order to prevent surface water run-off in the interests of highway 
safety, the amenity of the area and to protect the integrity of the highway in 
accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework. 
 

12) Prior to occupation the Electric Vehicle Charging points shown on the 
approved plans shall be implemented Thereafter, the Electric Vehicle 
Charging Points shall be retained in accordance with the approved plans and 
shall be kept available for the parking of electric vehicles at all times.  

Page 31



 

 
Reason: In the interests of Sustainable Development, in accordance with the 
National Planning Policy Framework and Policy TRA 1 of the Northumberland 
Local Plan. 

 
13) No works shall be undertaken other than in accordance with the measures 

detailed within ‘Ecological Appraisal, Land at Stakeford, OS Ecology, 
December 2022’ including but not limited to:  

 
• External lighting that may affect the site’s suitability for bats will be avoided. 
If required this will be limited to low level, avoiding use of high intensity 
security lighting  
• Vegetation clearance works will not be undertaken during the nesting bird 
season (March to August inclusive) unless the site is checked by an 
appropriately experienced ecologist and nests are confirmed to be absent.  
• Any excavations left open overnight will have a means of escape for 
mammals that may become trapped in the form of a ramp at least 300mm in 
width and angled no greater than 45°  
• A check for badger within 3 months of the commencement of site clearance  

 
Reason: To protect and enhance biodiversity in accordance with Local Plan 
policy ENV 2 and the National Planning Policy Framework.  

 
14) Works to trees shall be undertaken in complete accordance with the 

measures detailed within ‘Land off Stakeford Cresecent, Stakeford, 
Arboricultural Survey, Arboricultural Impact Assessment, Arboricultural 
Method Statement, Tree Protection Plan, Ref: ARB/AE/2928, Elliott 
Consultancy Ltd., December 2022.  

 
Reason: To maintain and protect the existing landscape and biodiversity value 
of the site in accordance with Local Plan policies ENV2, QOP4 and the 
National Planning Policy Framework. 

 
15) The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until bat and bird 

provision and access for hedgehogs, has been installed/constructed in 
accordance with details shown on ‘Landscape Masterplan, R/2625/1B, Rev.B: 
Sep 23’  

 
Reason: To protect and enhance biodiversity in accordance with Local Plan 
policy ENV2 and the National Planning Policy Framework.  

 
16) A landscape and ecological management plan (LEMP) shall be submitted to, 

and be approved in writing by, the local planning authority prior to the 
commencement of the development. The content of the LEMP shall include 
the following.  
a) Description and evaluation of features to be managed.  
b) Ecological trends and constraints on site that might influence management.  
c) Aims and objectives of management.  
d) Appropriate management options for achieving aims and objectives.  
e) Prescriptions for management actions.  
f) Preparation of a work schedule (including an annual work plan capable of 
being rolled forward over a five-year period).  

Page 32



 

g) Details of the body or organization responsible for implementation of the 
plan.  
h) Ongoing monitoring and remedial measures. The LEMP shall also include 
details of the legal and funding mechanism(s) by which the long-term 
implementation of the plan will be secured by the developer with the 
management body(ies) responsible for its delivery. The approved plan will be 
implemented in accordance with the approved details.  

 
Reason: To conserve and enhance the natural environment in accordance 
with Local Plan polices ENV2, QOP4 and the National Planning Policy 
Framework.  

 
17)  The Scheme shall be maintained in accordance with Document Reference: 

20035/AE/SuDS SuDS Maintenance Plan Proposed Residential 
Development, Land Off Stakeford Crescent, Stakeford Rev 4 dated 
22/02/2023 by RWO  

 
Reason: To ensure that the scheme to dispose of surface water operates at 
its full potential throughout the development’s lifetime in accordance with 
policy WAT 4 of the Northumberland Local Plan and the National Planning 
Policy Framework.  

 
18) Details of the disposal of surface water from the development through the 

construction phase shall be submitted to and agreed with the Local Planning 
Authority.  

 
Reason: To ensure the risk of flooding does not increase during this phase 
and to limit the siltation of any on site surface water features in accordance 
with policy WAT 3 of the Northumberland Local Plan and the National 
Planning Policy Framework. 

 
19) Prior to the first occupation of the development, a verification report carried 

out by a qualified drainage engineer or a suitably qualified professional must 
be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority, to demonstrate 
that all sustainable drainage systems have been constructed as per the 
agreed scheme. This verification report shall include:  

 
* As built drawings for all SuDS components - including dimensions (base 
levels, inlet/outlet elevations, areas, depths, lengths, diameters, gradients 
etc);  
* Construction details (component drawings, materials, vegetation); 
*Photographs of the surface water system being installed as per the agreed 
scheme including flow controls, storage structures and any other SuDS 
components.  
* Health and Safety file; and  
* Details of ownership organisation/adoption and maintenance details.  

 
Reason: To ensure that all sustainable drainage systems are designed to the 
DEFRA non technical standards in accordance with policy WAT 4 of the 
Northumberland Local Plan and the National Planning Policy Framework. 

 

20) If during development contamination not previously considered is identified, 
then an additional written remediation strategy regarding this material 

Page 33



 

(prepared by a competent person) shall be submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority. No building shall be occupied until a 
remediation strategy has been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority, and measures proposed to deal with the 
contamination have been carried out. Should no contamination be found during 
development then the applicant shall submit a signed statement indicating this 
to discharge this condition. 

 
* “Competent Person” has the same definition as defined within the National 
Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) ISBN 978-1-5286-1033-9.      
 
Reason: To ensure that risks from land contamination are minimised in 
accordance with policy POL 1 of the Northumberland Local Plan and the 
National Planning Policy Framework. 

 
21)  No foundation works shall be commenced until a report detailing the proposed 

protective measures to prevent the ingress of ground gases, including depleted 
Oxygen (19%), to the standard required in BS8485:2015+A1:2019 (Code of 
Practice for the design of protective measures for Methane and Carbon Dioxide 
ground gases for new buildings), or to a minimum of Characteristic Situation 2 
level of protection, has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. The report shall specify to the Local Planning Authority’s 
satisfaction how the annulus of service ducts will be sealed to prevent gas 
ingress into the living space of the dwelling. The report shall contain full details 
of the validation and verification assessment to be undertaken on the installed 
ground gas protection, as detailed in CIRIA C735 (Good Page 4 of 5 practice 
on the testing and verification of protection systems for buildings against 
hazardous ground gases)  

 
Reason: In order to prevent any accumulation of ground gas, which may be 
prejudicial to the health & amenity in accordance with policy POL 2 of the 
Northumberland Local Plan and the National Planning Policy Framework. 

 
22) No building shall be brought into use or occupied until the applicant has 

submitted a verification report to the approved methodology in Condition 21. 
The verification report shall be approved in writing by the LPA.  

 
Reason: In order to prevent any accumulation of ground gas, which may 
potentially be prejudicial to the health & amenity in accordance with policy POL 
2 of the Northumberland Local Plan and the National Planning Policy 
Framework. 

 
23) Prior to the occupation of any habitable dwelling, the applicant shall submit to 

the Local Planning Authority for approval in writing, a statement with evidence 
of how the service ducts were sealed.  

 
Reason: In order to prevent any accumulation of ground gas, which may 
potentially be prejudicial to the health & amenity of the occupants of the 
respective properties in accordance with policy POL 2 of the Northumberland 
Local Plan and the National Planning Policy Framework. 

 
24) No development shall take place outside the hours of:  
 

Page 34



 

• 0800 and 1800 on Mondays to Fridays and  
• 0800 and 1300 on Saturdays.  
• No development shall take place on Sundays, Public or Bank Holidays unless 
agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority.  
 
Reason: To protect residential amenity and provide a commensurate level of 
protection against noise in accordance with policy POL 2 of the Northumberland 
Local Plan and the National Planning Policy Framework. 

 
25) No development shall commence, including any works of demolition, until a 

dust management plan has been submitted and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. The agreed plan shall be implemented for the duration 
of the site works and shall include measures for the control and reduction of 
dust emissions associated with demolition, earthworks, construction and track 
out, dealing with complaints of dust and arrangements for monitoring air quality 
during construction. The development shall be carried out in accordance with 
the agreed plan and shall not be altered without the prior written approval of the 
local planning authority.  

 
Reason: To ensure a commensurate level of protection against dust in 
accordance with policy POL 2 of the Northumberland Local Plan and the 
National Planning Policy Framework.  

 
26) Prior to the commencement of development hereby approved, a legal diversion 

order under section 257 TCPA 1990 to permanently divert the public right of 
way ‘Parish of Wansbeck Public Footpath No.48’, shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the local authority. No development shall take place until 
diversion order has been confirmed. 

 
Reason: To promote sustainable connections in accordance with policy TRA 1 
of the Northumberland Local Plan and the National Planning Policy Framework.  

 
27) Prior to the commencement of development hereby approved, a temporary 

diversion order must be made for the public right of way ‘Parish of Wansbeck 
Public Footpath No.48’. No development shall take place until this temporary 
diversion order has been confirmed and the physical works to provide a suitable 
surface have been completed. 

 
Reason: To promote sustainable connections in accordance with policy TRA 1 
of the Northumberland Local Plan and the National Planning Policy Framework. 

 
28) Prior to the commencement of development above damp-proof course level of 

the first dwelling on site, full details of the proposed play equipment to be 
incorporated within the play space must be submitted to and approved in writing 
by the local planning authority. The proposals should provide an appropriate 
level of play equipment proportionate to the size of the play space. These 
approved details shall therefore be implemented prior to occupation of the first 
dwelling on site. 

 
Reason: To ensure appropriate play equipment within the site in accordance 
with policy INF 5 of the Northumberland Local Plan and the National Planning 
Policy Framework. 

 

Page 35



 

29) Prior to occupation of the first dwelling on site, a detailed open space (including 
play) management and maintenance scheme must be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the local planning authority. This document shall set out 
the management and maintenance of all areas of open space (excluding private 
gardens) and following approval, must be adhered to for the lifetime of the 
development hereby permitted. The document must, as a minimum, include: 

 
i) Details of landscape management and maintenance plans 
ii) Details of planting, grass cutting, weeding and pruning 
iii) Inspection, repair and maintenance of all hard landscaping and structures 
iv) Management, monitoring and operational restrictions 
v) Maintenance and planting replacement programme for the establishment 
period of landscaping 
vi) Establish a procedure that would be implemented in the event of any tree 
(or item of soft landscaping) being removed, uprooted/ destroyed or dying which 
shall ensure that any soft landscaping removed, dying or becoming seriously 
damaged, defective or diseased within 5 years from the substantial completion 
of development shall be replaced within the next planting season with soft 
landscaping of a similar size and species to that which it is replacing 

 
Reason: To ensure appropriate maintenance and management of open space 
in accordance with policies QOP 2, QOP 4 and INF 5 of the Northumberland 
Local Plan and the National Planning Policy Framework. 

 
 

Informatives 
 

1) You are advised to contact the Council’s Highway Development Management 
team at highwaysplanning@northumberland.gov.uk concerning the need for a 
Section 38 Agreement of the Highway Act 1980 relating to the adoption of new 
highways. 

 
2) You are advised that offsite highway works required in connection with this 

permission are under the control of the Council’s Technical Services Division 
and will require an agreement under section 278 of the Highway Act 1980. 
These works should be carried out before first occupation of the development. 
All such works will be undertaken by the Council at the applicant’s expense. 
You should contact Highway Development Management at 
highwaysplanning@northumberland.gov.uk to progress this matter 
 

3) You should note that a highway condition survey should be carried out before 
the commencement of demolition and construction vehicle movements from 
this site. To arrange a survey contact Highway Development Management at 
highwaysplanning@northumberland.gov.uk. 
 

4) Building materials or equipment shall not be stored on the highway unless 
otherwise agreed. You are advised to contact the Streetworks team on 0345 
600 6400 for Skips and Containers licences. 
 

5) The applicant is advised that to discharge condition 8 the Local Planning 
Authority requires a copy of a completed agreement between the applicant and 
the Local Highway Authority under Section 38 of the Highways Act 1980 or the 
constitution and details of a Private Management and Maintenance Company 

Page 36

mailto:highwaysplanning@northumberland.gov.uk


 

confirming funding, management and maintenance regimes. You can contact 
Highway Development Management at 
highwaysplanning@northumberland.gov.uk. 
 

6) The applicant is advised to obtain a technical approval for all estate street 
details from the Local Highway Authority prior to the submission of such 
approved details to the Local Planning Authority to discharge condition 9 of this 
permission. You can contact the Highway Development Management at 
highwaysplanning@northumberland.gov.uk. 
 

7) In accordance with the Highways Act 1980 mud, debris or rubbish shall not be 
deposited on the highway. 
 

8) You should note that Road Safety Audits are required to be undertaken. 
Northumberland County Council offers this service. You should contact 
highwaysplanning@northumberland.gov.uk 
 

9) You are advised that to ensure that all new properties and streets are registered 
with the emergency services, Land Registry, National Street Gazetteer and 
National Land and Property Gazetteer to enable them to be serviced and allow 
the occupants access to amenities including but not limited to; listing on the 
Electoral Register, delivery services, and a registered address on utility 
companies databases, details of the name and numbering of any new house(s) 
and/or flats/flat conversion(s) on existing and/or newly constructed streets must 
be submitted to the Highway Authority. Any new street(s) and property 
naming/numbering must be agreed in accordance with the Councils Street 
Naming and Property Numbering Policy and all address allocations can only be 
issued under the Town Improvement Clauses Act 1847 (Section 64 & 65) and 
the Public Health Act 1925 (Section 17, 18 & 19). 
 

10) All species of bat and their roosts (whether occupied or not) are strictly 
protected under the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) and the 
Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 (as 
amended). Similarly, all wild birds and their nests are protected whilst in use 
and it is an offence to recklessly or intentionally destroy nests or dependent 
young when on or near the nest, or to kill or take them.    
 
Amphibians, reptiles and mammals such as hedgehog and red squirrel also 
have legal protection, with great crested newt afforded additional protection 
under the Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 (as 
amended).  
 
Applicants and contractors should note that the protected species legislation 
operates independently of the planning system, planning consent does not 
override the legislation relating to protected species and that they should be 
aware that there is a chance of encountering protected species during works.  
Care should be taken when removing any roof coverings, window frames or 
other external features which may support bats or nesting birds.   
 
If protected species such as bats, great crested newt or nesting birds are 
encountered during development then works should cease immediately and 
advice of the Project Ecologist should be sought straight away. 
 

Page 37

mailto:highwaysplanning@northumberland.gov.uk
mailto:highwaysplanning@northumberland.gov.uk
mailto:highwaysplanning@northumberland.gov.uk


 

11) Ready-made integrated bird and bat boxes built into new buildings provide long 
lasting roosting/nesting features. Most boxes consist of a self-contained 
concrete roost chamber; however, options are available which will allow bats 
access into the roof space or wall cavity of the building. Examples of boxes can 
be readily seen online (e.g., https://www.nhbs.com/equipment). Swift 
brick/boxes are a good option, being able to accommodate a range of smaller 
cavity nesting birds (house sparrows, blue tits, great tits). Bat boxes are best 
located on south or east elevations and bird boxes on north and east elevations 
of buildings. 

 
12) Using native species in landscaping schemes has many advantages. They are 

the most likely to support the most wildlife and avoid the risk of the problems 
that invasive species bring. Many of them are just as attractive as ornamental 
varieties and will bring a sense of local distinctiveness to planting schemes.  

 
A list of plant species native to Northumberland can be found online. A list of 
suitable trees is available online from Northumberland Wildlife Trust. Please 
note Field Maple is not considered locally native to Northumberland and should 
not be widely planted, and it is no longer recommended to include Ash in 
planting schemes due to the prevalence of ash die back disease (Chalara). 
 

13) The effectiveness of the development’s design in ensuring that a nuisance is 
not created, is the responsibility of the applicant / developer and their 
professional advisors / consultants. Developers should, therefore, fully 
appreciate the importance of obtaining competent professional advice. 

 
14) The granting of planning permission does not in any way indemnify against 

statutory nuisance action being taken should substantiated complaints within 
the remit of part III of the Environmental Protection Action 1990 be received. 

 
 
Date of Report: 22nd February 2024 
Background Papers: Planning application file(s) 23/02165/FUL 
  
 
 

Page 38



 

 

 

 

 

Appeal Update Report 

Date: March 2024 

Planning Appeals 

Report of the Director of Planning 

Cabinet Member: Councillor CW Horncastle 

 

Purpose of report 

For Members’ information to report the progress of planning appeals.  This is a monthly 

report and relates to appeals throughout all 5 Local Area Council Planning Committee 

areas and covers appeals of Strategic Planning Committee.     

Recommendations 

To note the contents of the report in respect of the progress of planning appeals that have 

been submitted to and determined by the Planning Inspectorate. 

Link to Corporate Plan  

This report is relevant to all of the priorities included in the NCC Corporate Plan 2018-2021 

where identified within individual planning applications and appeals. 

Key issues  

Each planning application and associated appeal has its own particular set of individual 

issues and considerations that have been taken into account in their determination, which 

are set out within the individual application reports and appeal decisions. 

Page 39

Agenda Item 6



 

Recent Planning Appeal Decisions 

Planning Appeals Allowed (permission granted) 

Reference No Proposal and main planning considerations Award of 
costs? 

21/04346/FUL Replace existing building (3no flats/14 no bed sit 
spaces) with 3no detached houses with 18 bed 
spaces to be used as holiday accommodation (as 
amended 20th April 2023) - On the Beach, Harbour 
Road, Beadnell 

Main issues: the proposed units would not enhance 
and reinforce the local distinctiveness of the 
conservation area and would not integrate with the 
surrounding built environment; and identified harm is 
less than substantial but it has not been demonstrated 
the public benefit outweighs the harm. 

Committee Decision - Officer Recommendation: 

Approve 

No 

22/04546/CLEXIS Certificate of existing lawful development for the siting 
of a twin unit caravan for ancillary residential use as 
an annexe within the existing residential curtilage – 
Old Field, Catton, Hexham 

Main issues: the caravan is not within the residential 
curtilage so would require planning permission and 
would have a significant degree of permanency 
constituting development – the caravan would not be 
lawful. 

Delegated Decision - Officer Recommendation: 

Refuse 

No – 

claim 

refused 

23/01093/FUL Proposed single storey rear extension, extend above 
roof above and rear dormer addition – Pethfoot 
Lodge, Cragside 

Main issues: incongruous and inappropriate form of 
development that would be out of character with the 
existing property and have a harmful impact upon the 
character and appearance of the site and surrounding 
area. 

Delegated Decision - Officer Recommendation: 

Refuse 

No – 

claim 

refused 

23/02030/FUL Proposed erection of holiday dwelling with associated 
access and residential garden – land south east of 
The Courtyard, Matfen 

Main issues: development in the open countryside; 
and insufficient information to fully consider the 

No – 

claim 

refused 

Page 40



 

ecological impacts of the proposal. 

Appeal against non-determination 

22/03755/FUL Siting of timber bin store (retrospective) - Black Swan 

Inn, 2 Union Street, Seahouses 

Main issues: scale and appearance lead to less than 

substantial harm to the Seahouses Conservation 

Area. 

Delegated Decision - Officer Recommendation: 

Refuse 

No 

23/02134/FUL Front 2 storey extension and side extension above 
garage – 6 Dunsdale Road, Holywell 

Main issues: design, height and visual appearance is 
out of character in the street scene with detrimental 
visual impact; and unacceptable impact on residential 
amenity. 

Delegated Decision - Officer Recommendation: 

Refuse 

No 

 

Planning Appeals Split Decision 

Reference No Proposal and main planning considerations Award of 
costs? 

22/04676/LBC Listed Building Consent for alterations comprising 
inserting one window with shutter in South facing 
gable wall, and the replacement of existing window 
with fully glazed panel and shutter on West elevation 
(Amended Description) - The Cottage, Riding Home 
Farm, Acomb, Hexham 

Main issues: less than substantial harm to the 
character and significance of the listed building that 
has not been justified. 

(The appeal is dismissed in respect of the proposed 

window within the south facing gable wall and is 

allowed only with regard to the west elevation glazing 

panel.) 

No 

Page 41



 

Planning Appeals Dismissed (permission refused) 

Reference No Proposal and main planning considerations Award of 
costs? 

23/01478/FUL Construction of second story rear extension, single 
storey rear extension with glass roof, proposed 
dormer extension to rear and dormer window to front 
– 10 Front Street, Newbiggin-by-the-Sea 

Main issues: scale, design and positioning would 
result in an incongruous addition and detract from 
the character of the Conservation Area; and adverse 
impact on residential amenity due to loss of sunlight 
and visual outlook. 

Delegated Decision - Officer Recommendation: 

Refuse 

No 

22/04617/FUL The erection of 3no. cyclist accommodation units, 
associated extension to West House Farm Cottage, 
installation of solar panels, and associated 
landscaping and infrastructure – West House Farm 
Cottage, Shilvington 

Main issues: poorly accessible and unsustainable 
location in the open countryside; and inappropriate 
development in the Green Belt with no very special 
circumstances to outweigh the harm. 

Delegated Decision - Officer Recommendation: 

Refuse 

No 

21/03396/FUL Construction of 3no. residential cottages with 
associated garages, access, car parking and 
landscaping and demolition of existing outbuilding(s) 
and extension(s) to 4 & 5 Front Street with 
replacement extension(s) and internal alterations - 4 
and 5 Front Street, Capheaton 

Main issues: proposals are not commensurate with 
the size of the settlement and encroach into the open 
countryside, adversely impacting on the setting and 
appearance of the settlement and surrounding 
countryside; proposals result in harm to the heritage 
assets and their setting without clear and convincing 
justification of this harm or public benefits to 
outweigh the harm; layout, scale and design as well 
as pattern of development would be detrimental to 
local vernacular and character; lack of information on 
car parking, access arrangements, refuse, drainage 
and opportunities to promote walking, cycling and 
public transport;  and proposals result in biodiversity 

No 

Page 42



 

net loss. 

Delegated Decision - Officer Recommendation: 

Refuse 

21/03397/LBC Listed Building Consent for demolition of existing 
outbuilding(s) and extension(s) to 4 & 5 Front Street 
with replacement extension(s), internal alterations 
and alterations to boundary walls – 4 and 5 Front 
Street, Capheaton 

Main issues: proposals result in harm to the heritage 
assets without clear and convincing justification of 
this harm or public benefits to outweigh the harm. 

Delegated Decision - Officer Recommendation: 

Refuse 

No 

22/03790/FUL External render removal from North wall. New double 
door with juliet balcony at street level. Refurbishment 
of basement level & external area to make secure & 
improve appearance. No change of use – Jacksons 
Hairdresser, 1 Wansbeck Street, Morpeth 

Main issues: harm to the setting of a listed building, 
the character of the property and its setting within the 
Conservation Area. 

Delegated Decision - Officer Recommendation: 

Refuse 

No 

22/02704/CLEXIS Certificate of Lawful Development – Existing use for 
the siting of a caravan for residential purposes – land 
north of east of South Linden House, Longhorsley 

Main issues: it is not possible to conclude that the 
building has been used for a continuous period of 4 
years as a dwelling. 

Delegated Decision - Officer Recommendation: 

Refuse 

No 

23/01742/FUL Proposed development of 1no. dwelling with 
associated access and amenity space – land west of 
20 Park Road, Swarland 

Main issues: development in the open countryside in 
an unsustainable location; size, scale, layout and 
subdivision of the plot would be out of character with 
the surrounding area and unacceptable impact on 
the street scene; and unacceptable impact on the 
landscape and character of the immediate and wider 
area. 

No 

Page 43



 

Delegated Decision - Officer Recommendation: 

Refuse 

23/00673/FUL Retrospective: construction of single storey garden 
room and steps to rear – Newton Post Office, 
Newton, Stocksfield 

Main issues: harm to the character and appearance 
of the dwelling, site and the Newton Conservation 
Area. 

Delegated Decision - Officer Recommendation: 

Refuse 

No 

23/02038/FUL Replacement of fence to south of driveway - 
Oakwood Hall, Wylam 

Main issues: less than substantial harm to the setting 
of the Grage II listed building; insufficient information 
to assess the ecological impacts of the development; 
and inappropriate development in the Green Belt. 

Delegated Decision - Officer Recommendation: 

Refuse 

No 

23/01801/FUL Proposed two storey front extension and roof 
alterations – Close House, Whalton 

Main issues: scale, massing and design would result 
in disproportionate and unsympathetic additions that 
would adversely affect the existing dwelling, the 
character of the Conservation Area and the setting of 
listed buildings; and insufficient information to assess 
the ecological impact of the proposals. 

Appeal against non-determination 

No 

 

 

Planning Appeals Withdrawn 

Reference No Proposal and main planning considerations Award of 
costs? 

None   

Page 44



 

Planning Casework Unit Referrals 

Reference No Proposal and main planning considerations Award of 
costs? 

None   

Planning Appeals Received 

Appeals Received 

Reference No Description and address Appeal start date 
and decision 
level 

22/01012/FUL Conversion of agricultural buildings to create 
one dwelling including a link extension and 
detached garage – development site at 
Barley Hill House Barn, Kiln Pit Hill, Consett 

Main issues: design fails to reflect the 
character or appearance of the listed farm 
building and results in harm to the character 
and appearance of the listed building. 

17 May 2023 

Delegated 

Decision - Officer 

Recommendation: 

Refuse 

22/03027/FUL Retrospective Application for the Erection of 
Storage Sheds – Mickley Bank Farm, 
Stocksfield 

Main issues: inappropriate development in 
the open countryside and the Green Belt and 
no very special circumstances to outweigh 
the harm. 

26 October 2023 

Delegated 

Decision - Officer 

Recommendation: 

Refuse 

23/02794/FUL Erection of 1 no. dwelling (C3 Use) - 
Westfield, Cramlington 

Main issues: fails to positively contribute to 
and respect the character of the area and the 
Cramlington Village Conservation Area; and 
no planning obligation has been completed 
to secure contributions to the coastal 
mitigation service or any other satisfactory 
alternative mitigation. 

31 October 2023 

Delegated 

Decision - Officer 

Recommendation: 

Refuse 

 

23/03037/FUL Proposed 2no. new dwellings along with new 
access and parking to serve proposed 
dwellings along with existing adjacent 
cottages – land west of 10 West Burton 
Cottages, West Burton Cottages, Bamburgh 

Main issues: development in the open 
countryside in an unsustainable location; 
harm to the landscape and character of the 

24 November 

2023 

Appeal against 

non-determination 

Page 45



 

area; absence of suitable mitigation to 
address recreational disturbance with 
adverse effects on the Northumbria Coast 
SPA and Ramsar Site and the North 
Northumberland Dunes SAC; and lack of 
information to assess proposed outbuildings. 

23/02500/FUL Extension to home office – 1 Low Middle 
Moor House, Stannington, Morpeth 

Main issues: would extend beyond the 
residential curtilage and encroach into open 
countryside; and inappropriate development 
in the Green Belt. 

5 December 2023 

Delegated 

Decision - Officer 

Recommendation: 

Refuse 

23/03700/FUL Change of use from 11 bedroom supported 

living, care and short-term accommodation 

(use class C2) to 11 bedroom house in 

multiple occupation – 86 Regent Street, Blyth 

Main issues: inadequate size of bedrooms 

resulting in substandard living conditions and 

detrimental impact upon the amenity of future 

occupiers; and alterations would result in a 

high chance of a disproportionate increase in 

anti-social behaviour undermining quality of 

life and community cohesion. 

12 December 

2023 

Delegated 

Decision - Officer 

Recommendation: 

Refuse 

 

21/03426/FUL Change of use of existing hotel to 12no. 

residential units with associated internal 

alterations – Northumberland Hospitality, 

Coquet Vale Hotel, Station Road, Rothbury 

Main issues: insufficient information in 

relation to highway safety, ecological 

impacts; and lack of financial contribution to 

education provision and open space 

provision. 

13 December 

2023 

Delegated 

Decision - Officer 

Recommendation: 

Refuse 

23/01175/FUL Demolition of 2no semi detached bungalows 

and construction of three storey dwelling with 

garage and associated landscaping – 8-10 

Runnymede Road, Darras Hall, Ponteland 

Main issues: design, siting and scale would 

create an incongruous, dominant and 

overbearing building out of character with its 

surroundings; detrimental impact on the 

residential amenity of neighbouring 

occupants; and loss of protected trees. 

19 December 

2023 

Delegated 

Decision - Officer 

Recommendation: 

Refuse 

21/03496/FUL Proposed new detached dwelling – Westlea 

Bed and Breakfast, 29 Riverside Road, 

3 January 2024 

Committee 

Page 46



 

Alnmouth 

Main issues: design, scale, massing and loss 

of burgage plot would not preserve or 

enhance the character and appearance of 

the Alnmouth Conservation Area; and 

detrimental impact on residential amenity. 

Decision - Officer 

Recommendation: 

Approve 

 

21/03781/FUL Change of use and re-development of 

Shadfen Park Farm agricultural barn, 

buildings and land to form new multi-purpose 

development – land west of Shadfen Park, 

Shadfen 

Main issues: unacceptable development in 

the open countryside; and inappropriate 

development in the Green Belt. 

8 January 2024 

Delegated 

Decision - Officer 

Recommendation: 

Refuse 

23/02008/FUL Change of use from staff and holiday 

accommodation to residential dwellinghouse 

– outbuilding west of Cragside Stables, Park 

Lane, Bardon Mill 

Main issues: creation of new dwelling within 

the open countryside with insufficient 

justification; and insufficient information has 

been provided in respect of car parking 

provision and vehicle movement to 

demonstrate adequate parking and safe 

access. 

9 January 2024 

Delegated 

Decision - Officer 

Recommendation: 

Refuse 

23/02898/CLEXIS Certificate of Lawful Development - Existing 

development: Commencement of planning 

permission 14/03746/FUL for the creation of 

2no. dwellings – land at 23-25 Western Way, 

Darras Hall, Ponteland 

Main issues: insufficient evidence to 

demonstrate that development had 

commenced before the expiry of the planning 

permission. 

11 January 2024 

Delegated 

Decision - Officer 

Recommendation: 

Refuse 

23/02636/FUL 2 story rear extension with alterations to 

access and parking to the front – 3 

Normandy Terrace, Longhorsley 

Main issues: design would be an 

incompatible addition and incongruous with 

the existing dwelling and terrace; and lack of 

bat risk assessment to assess potential 

impacts on protected species. 

16 January 2024 

Delegated 

Decision - Officer 

Recommendation: 

Refuse 

Page 47



 

23/03240/FUL Change of use of stable building to 1no. 

residential dwelling, with associated access 

and parking – land east of Horsley Banks 

Farm, Horsley 

Main issues: inappropriate development in 

the Green Belt and open countryside; design 

is not in keeping with the traditional character 

of the area and results in a harmful impact on 

the Horsely Conservation Area and the rural 

landscape; and lack of useable outdoor 

amenity space. 

16 January 2024 

Delegated 

Decision - Officer 

Recommendation: 

Refuse 

23/04122/FUL Siting of ‘Timber Living Trailer’ - land south of 
Jubilee Cottages, West Woodburn 

Main issues: development in the open 
countryside in a location that is not 
sustainable or accessible. 

17 January 2024 

Delegated 

Decision - Officer 

Recommendation: 

Refuse 

23/02200/FUL Loft conversion of main house with first floor 
extension to rear and dormer windows to 
front and side elevations, construction of flat 
over existing detached garage that will be 
ancillary to the main residential dwelling and 
used for this purpose. Garage roof to be 
converted from flat to pitched. - 238 Western 
Way, Darras Hall, Ponteland 

Main issues: front dormer extension would 
be unduly prominent and poor design; loss of 
residential amenity; and lack of ecological 
impact assessment to ass potential risk to 
protected species. 

22 January 2024 

Delegated 

Decision - Officer 

Recommendation: 

Refuse 

23/02140/MAST Notification of Prior Approval for the 
installation of 5m extension to existing lattice 
mast to accommodate 3 no replacement 
antenna, ancillary radio equipment at new 
support poles, the installation of 1 no GPS 
Module and x 2no new cabinets at ground 
level in compound along with ancillary 
development thereto – T-Mobile 
Communications Mast, Hebron Hill 

Main issues: harm to the visual amenity of 
the open countryside landscape, and 
negative impacts on protected trees and 
dwellings in the locality. 

22 January 2024 

Delegated 

Decision - Officer 

Recommendation: 

Refuse 

23/03360/FUL Change of use "Waste Land" to garden (C3) 
- land to rear of 90 Heather Lea, Bebside 

Main issues: negative visual impact and 
incongruous intrusion to green space; and 
adverse impact on the amenity of 

23 January 2024 

Delegated 

Decision - Officer 

Recommendation: 

Page 48



 

neighbouring properties. Refuse 

23/02839/FUL Proposed rural workers dwelling, consisting 
of retention and extension to dwelling located 
on site – land at east of La Luna Farm, Mill 
Lane, Heugh 

Main issues: inappropriate development in 
the Green Belt. 

30 January 2024 

Committee 

Decision - Officer 

Recommendation: 

Approve 

23/03485/FUL Retrospective: Erection of holiday chalet 
within curtilage of East Salmon Wells Farm 
for holiday let use – land north east of East 
Salmons Well, Salmons Well, Acomb 

Main issues: poorly accessible and 
unsustainable location in the open 
countryside; inappropriate development in 
the Green Belt; and harmful visual impact on 
the rural character and appearance of the 
site, landscape and openness of the Green 
Belt. 

5 February 2024 

Delegated 

Decision - Officer 

Recommendation: 

Refuse 

22/02619/FUL Retrospective Change of Use of White 
Cottage to Serviced Accommodation in 
Association with the Joiners Arms – White 
Cottage, The Inn Road, Newton-by-the-Sea 

Main issues: overdevelopment of the village 
with consequent impacts upon the tranquillity 
of the village and the Northumberland Coast 
National Landscape. 

5 February 2024 

Committee 

Decision - Officer 

Recommendation: 

Approve 

23/03944/FUL Demolition of existing bungalow and 
construction of a new bungalow – Saugh 
House Farm, Belsay 

Main issues: appeal against imposition of 
conditions 3 (construction method 
statement), 8 (materials), 9 (windows and 
door details), 10 (removal of permitted 
development rights) and 11 (sustainable 
design / construction measures). 

6 February 2024 

Delegated 

Decision - Officer 

Recommendation: 

Approve 

23/02284/FUL Extensions, alteration and subdivision of 
existing single dwellinghouse to create two 
dwellinghouses – Houghton Moor, Heddon-
on-the-Wall 

Main issues: additional dwelling in an 
isolated location in the open countryside; 
inappropriate development in the Green Belt; 
inappropriate design that fails to make a 
positive contribution to local character and 
distinctiveness; insufficient information to 
demonstrate the proposals will minimise their 
impact on great crested newts; fails to 
demonstrate how proposals will sustain, 
protect and enhance the setting of the 

6 February 2024 

Delegated 

Decision - Officer 

Recommendation: 

Refuse 

Page 49



 

Hadrian’s Wall World Heritage Site; and 
insufficient information to demonstrate the 
proposals will not result in adverse impacts 
on highway safety. 

23/03917/FUL Timber shed on front garden of the property 
(retrospective) - 7 Beech Court, Widdrington 
Station 

Main issues: obtrusive design and 
detrimental impact on the visual appearance 
of the area; and detrimental impact on the 
amenity of neighbouring residents. 

7 February 2024 

Delegated 

Decision - Officer 

Recommendation: 

Refuse 

23/03362/FUL Retention and change of use from 
agricultural workers chalet to holiday chalet – 
Hillfield, Allendale Road, Hexham 

Main issues: inappropriate development in 
the Green Belt; and harmful visual impact on 
rural character and appearance of the site 
and surrounding landscape. 

12 February 2024 

Committee 

Decision - Officer 

Recommendation: 

Refuse 

23/02041/FUL (Retrospective) First floor extension over 
kitchen to create bathroom – 228 Plessey 
Road, Blyth 

Main issues: detrimental impact upon the 
character and visual appearance of the 
existing dwelling and visual amenity of the 
wider local area; and detrimental impact 
upon the amenity of adjoining residents. 

12 February 2024 

Delegated 

Decision - Officer 

Recommendation: 

Refuse 

23/01863/FUL Construction of a two bedroom bungalow 
with associated parking and access – land 
south of The Shieling, Waynriggs Close, 
Humshaugh 

Main issues: overdevelopment of the site and 
would be out of character with the pattern of 
development within the immediate 
surrounding local area; reduction in the 
amount of outdoor amenity space for the 
dwelling approved to the south to an 
unacceptable level; adverse impact on 
residential amenity; and fails to demonstrate 
that sufficient car parking can be provided, 
that a safe and suitable access can be 
achieved and that it would not adversely 
impact upon highway safety. 

12 February 2024 

Delegated 

Decision - Officer 

Recommendation: 

Refuse 

23/00583/FUL Change of use of existing public house (Sui 
Generis) to provide 3no. residential 
apartments (Use Class C3) and erection of 
4no. dwellings (Use Class C3) to rear, 
utilising existing access off E Ord Road, with 
associated parking, hard and soft 
landscaping – The Salmon Inn, East Ord, 

14 February 2024 

Committee 

Decision - Officer 

Recommendation: 

Approve 

Page 50



 

Berwick-upon-Tweed 

Main issues: overdevelopment of the site and 
a density that would appear out of character 
with the surrounding area and would cause 
an unacceptable impact on the street scene; 
unacceptable loss of public amenity space; 
and insufficient information in respect to 
pedestrian crossing to demonstrate there 
would be no significant impact on the safety 
of the highway. 

Recent Enforcement Appeal Decisions 

Enforcement Appeals Allowed 

Reference No Description and address Award of 
costs? 

None   

 

Enforcement Appeals Dismissed 

Reference No Description and address Award of 
costs? 

None   

 

Enforcement Appeals Withdrawn 

Reference No Description and address Award of 
costs? 

None 

 

  

 

Page 51



 

Enforcement Appeals Received 

Appeals Received 

Reference No Description and address Appeal start date  

21/00080/ENDEVT Installation of hardcore - land to north of Kiln 

Cottage, Newton-on-the-Moor 

13 June 2023 

23/00315/ENFCOU Material change of use of the land from 

agricultural use to a storage, distribution (B8) 

and manufacturing (B2) yard – land north of 

All Saints Church, Ryal 

11 December 

2023 

20/00504/ENDEVT Installation of hardstanding for access and 

6no. pitches, installation of electricity and 

water points, installation of a septic tank and 

erection of building – land north-east of 

Fieldholme, Embleton 

18 December 

2023 

Inquiry and Hearing Dates 

Reference No Description and address Inquiry/hearing 
date and 
decision level 

19/01362/REM Reserved matters application for 
appearance, landscaping, layout and scale 
for proposed 150 residential dwellings (use 
class C3) including 30% affordable housing, 
countryside park including car park, pursuant 
to approved outline planning application 
16/00078/OUT (revised description 8th 
August 2022) - land west of Lancaster Park, 
Pinewood Drive, Lancaster Park, Morpeth 

Main issues: by virtue of the layout, scale 
and appearance, the design fails to preserve 
or make a positive contribution to local 
character and distinctiveness and the site’s 
surroundings and does not demonstrate high 
quality sustainable design; and there is no 
effective and safe access and egress to the 
existing transport network.  

Hearing – 30 

August 2023 

Committee 

Decision - Officer 

Recommendation: 

Approve 

22/00566/OUT Outline planning application with all matters 
reserved except for access, for construction 

Hearing – 5 March 

2024 

Page 52



 

of up to 30no. bungalows for over 55s (Use 
Class C3) - land west of Furrow Grove, 
Station Road, Stannington 

Main issues: residential development in the 
open countryside; fails to respect the rural, 
dispersed and open character of the site and 
surrounding area; inappropriate development 
in the Green Belt; lack of housing needs 
assessment or evidence to justify 100% 
specialist housing scheme for older persons 
in this location; unsustainable location with 
no services or facilities and access would be 
reliant on the private car; insufficient 
information to fully assess hydrology and 
flood risk; insufficient information to fully 
assess archaeological impact and mitigation; 
and lack of completed planning obligations 
securing specialist housing, affordable 
housing, open space contribution, healthcare 
contribution and Coastal Mitigation Service 
contribution. 

Delegated 

Decision - Officer 

Recommendation: 

Refuse 

Page 53



 

 

Implications 

Policy Decisions on appeals may affect future 
interpretation of policy and influence policy reviews 

Finance and value for money There may be financial implications where costs are 
awarded by an Inspector or where Public Inquiries 
are arranged to determine appeals 

Legal It is expected that Legal Services will be instructed 
where Public Inquiries are arranged to determine 
appeals 

Procurement None 

Human resources None 

Property None 

Equalities 

(Impact Assessment attached?)  

❏ Yes 

✓ No 

❏ N/a  
 

Planning applications and appeals are considered 
having regard to the Equality Act 2010 

Risk assessment None 

Crime and disorder 
As set out in individual reports and decisions 

Customer consideration None 

Carbon reduction Each application/appeal may have an impact on the 
local environment and have been assessed 
accordingly 

Wards All where relevant to application site relating to the 
appeal 

Background papers 

Planning applications and appeal decisions as identified within the report. 

Report author and contact details 

Elizabeth Sinnamon 
Development Service Manager 
Elizabeth.Sinnamon@northumberland.gov.uk 

Page 54


	Agenda
	Non participation in case of disclosable pecuniary interest
	Disclosure of Other Registerable Interests
	Disclosure of Non-Registerable Interests

	2 MINUTES
	4 Determination of Planning Applications
	5 23/02165/FUL
	6 Planning Appeals
	Planning Appeals
	Purpose of report
	Recommendations
	Link to Corporate Plan
	Key issues

	Recent Planning Appeal Decisions
	Planning Appeals Allowed (permission granted)
	Planning Appeals Split Decision
	Planning Appeals Dismissed (permission refused)
	Planning Appeals Withdrawn
	Planning Casework Unit Referrals

	Planning Appeals Received
	Appeals Received

	Recent Enforcement Appeal Decisions
	Enforcement Appeals Allowed
	Enforcement Appeals Dismissed
	Enforcement Appeals Withdrawn

	Enforcement Appeals Received
	Appeals Received

	Inquiry and Hearing Dates
	Implications
	Background papers
	Report author and contact details



